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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of BSES Yamuna Power Limited
Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of BSES Yamuna Power
Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, (hereinafter referred
to as “Ind AS Financial Statements”).

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the (state of affairs) financial
position, profit or loss (financial performance including other comprehensive income),
cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls and ensuring their operating effectiveness and the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the iInd AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on
our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Ind AS financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Company’s
preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the
accounting estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the state of affairs (financial
position) of the Company as at March 31, 2018, its profit (financial performance including
other comprehensive income), its cash flows and changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the following matters in the notes to the Ind AS financial
statements:

i. Note 17 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements with regard to Delhi
Electricity Regulatory Commission (“DERC") Tariff Order received by the Company
wherein DERC has trued up revenue gap up to March 31, 2014 vide its Tariff Order
dated September 29, 2015 with certain disallowances. The Company has preferred
an appeal before Honourable APTEL against such disallowances. Based on a legal
opinion, the impact of these disallowances, which are subject matter of the
appeal, has not been considered in the carrying value of Regulatory Deferral
Account Balance as at March 31, 2018 in the accompanying Ind AS financial
statements.

DERC has further undertaken truing-up of revenue gap of FY 2014-15 and FY 2015-
16 vide, Tariff Order dated August 31, 2017 and of FY 2016-17 vide Tariff Order
dated March 28, 2018 with certain disallowances. The Company has preferred an
appeal or is in the process of filing an appeal before Honourable APTEL against
certain disallowances. Based on the legal opinion, the Company has not
considered the impact of such disallowances in the computation of Regulatory
Deferral Account Balance as at March 31, 2018 in the accompanying Ind AS
financial statements;

Continuation Sheet


41018442
Stamp


HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ii. Note 50 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements with regard to
outstanding balances payable to various electricity generating companies and
timely recovery of Accumulated Regulatory Deferral Account Balance, for which
matter is pending before Honourable Supreme Court and the judgement is
reserved; and

ili.  Note 51 to the accompanying Ind AS financial statements with regard to audit
conducted by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditors’ Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act,
we give in “Annexure 17, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
the Order, to the extent applicable.

{2} As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Rf.'port are in agreement with the
books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder;

e. The matter described in sub-paragraph (i) and (ii) under the Emphasis of Matter
paragraph above, in our opinion, may have an adverse effect on the cash flows of
the Company and consequently on the functioning of the Company;

f. On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2018, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act;

g. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial

reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we give
our separate Report in “Annexure 27,
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h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us: '

(i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its Ind AS financial statements - Refer Note 48 on Contingent Liabilities
and Note 49 on other matters under litigation to the Ind AS financial statements;

(i) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts. Hence, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise; and

(iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W /W100048

MaquGupta
Partner
Membership No. 505629

New Delhi: April 21, 2018
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ANNEXURE 1 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
BSES Yamuna Power Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31,
2018]

(iY(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) During the year, the fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the
management, other than underground cables/ overhead cables due to technical reasons, as
per the regular program of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. As informed, material
discrepancies identified on such verification have been properly dealt with in the books of
account,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us, immovable properties
comprising buildings recorded in the books of account of the Company were transferred to,
and vested in, the Company pursuant to unbundling of Delhi Vidyut Board and in
accordance with Delhi Electricity Reform (Transfer Scheme) Rules, 2001 read with the Dethi
Electricity Reform Act, 2000. No title deeds in respect of these immovable properties were
handed over by the Government of the NCT of Delhi to the Company at the time of such
unbundling.

(ii) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable. As informed, no material discrepancy
was noticed on physical verification carried out during the year.

(iii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the Act. Accordingly,
paragraph 3 (iii)(a), 3 (iii){b) and 3 (iii}{c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted
any loans, made investments or guarantees and hence reporting paragraph 3(iv) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

{v) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of
the Act and the rules framed there under.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of
products where the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there
under and we are of the opinion that prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records
have been made and maintained. However, we have not made any detailed examination of
cost records maintained by the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales
tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty,
electricity tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it however, the
delays in deposit have not been serious.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts
ayable in respect of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax,
rvice tax, value added tax, goods and service tax, customs duty, excise duty,

#lectricity tax, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were

P
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outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the dues outstanding with
respect to, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, goods and service tax,
customs duty, excise duty on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature of Amount of Amount paid | Period to which | Forum where
Statute dues demand Rs | Under protest the amount dispute is
. (in Crores) | (Rs In Crores) relates pending
Income Tax | Interest u/s 1.00 1.00 Assessment Year | Commissioner
Act, 1961 201(1A) 2008-09 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Demand u/s 0.18 - Assessment Year | Commissioner
154/143(3) 2012-13 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Demand u/s 0.39 - Assessment Year Income Tax
154/143(3) 2013-14 Appellate
Tribunal
Demand u/s 0.50 - Assessment Year | Commissioner
154/143(3) 2014-15 of Income Tax
{Appeals)
Demand u/s 0.53 - Assessment Year | Commissioner
154/143(3) 2015-16 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Demand u/s 0.40 - Assessment Year | Commissioner
154/143(3) 2009-10 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of loans or borrowings to banks and government. The Company has no dues in

respect of debenture holders during the year.

(ix) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there was no
money raised by way of initial public offer/further public offer (including debt
_instruments) during the year. Further, the term loans have been applied by the Company

for the purposes for which they were raised.

{x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by the
management during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has
been paid / provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act,

(xif) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company

is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(xili) According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions entered into by

the Company with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act,

%T;ere applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as

uired by the applicable Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS).

Continuation Sheet


41018442
Stamp

41018442
Stamp


HARIBHAKTI & CO. LLP

Chartered Accountants

(xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Therefore, paragraph
3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him during the
year.

(xvi) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not required to
be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm-Registration No. 103523W/W100048

. Mayur-6tpta
Partner
Membership No.: 505649

Date: April 21, 2018
Place: New Delhi
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in
the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of BSES Yamuna Power
Limited on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of BSES Yamuna
Power Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internat control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenarice of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over
financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generatly accepted accounting
principles. A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the [CAl.

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W/W100048

MayurGupta (
Partner
Membership No. 50562‘5

Date: April 21, 2018
Place: New Delhi
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2018

Particulars Note As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
(X in Crores) (T in Crores)
Assets
Non.Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,121.21 1,954,268
(b} Capital Werk In Progress 3 139.35 151.10
{c} Otier Intangible Assets 4 6.94 486
{d) Financial assets
{i) Restricted Deposits With Banks 5 93.75 13.94
(ii) Loans 6 0.05 0.05
(i) Other Financial Assets 7 1.38 270
(e) Other Men Current Assets 8 4.72 10.98
2,367.40 2,137.99
Current Assets
(a) Inventories 9 21.07 40.81
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 10 216.92 223.57
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 92,41 2373
(iii) Bank Balances other than (i) above 12 1048 270
(iv) Loans 13 0.80 0.86
(v} Other Financia) Assets 14 182.58 223.34
{c} Current Tax Asset 15 9.64 4.9
(d) Other Current Assets 16 93.64 67.08
627.54 587.00
Total Assets before Regulatory Assets A 2,994,94 2,724.99
Regulatery defemral acgounts debil balances and related deferred tax
|balances 17 8,122.27 7,705.80
Total Assets 11,117.21 10,430.89
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
{a) Equity Share Capital 18 566.00 556.00
(b) Other Equity 19 211.85 171.36
Total Equity 767.85 727.36
Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
{(a) Financial Liablfities
(i Borrowings 20 999.85 476.52
(i} Other Financial Liablities 21 432.51 457.21
(b} Provisions 22 39.07 28.91
(c) Censumer Contribution for Capital Works 23 219.29 181.55
(d) Service Line Deposits 24 156.66 151,54
(e) Grant-In-Aid 25 6.52 7.32
() Cther Non-current fiabilities 26 50.37 100.19
1,904,27 1,403.24
Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
{i) Borrowings 27 327.74 599.18
{ii) Trade Payables 28 7.503.52 6,747.56
(iii) Other Financial Liabilties 29 179.19 677.70
(b) Other Current Liabilities 30 303.78 210.05
{c) Provisions 31 120.43 60.44
{d) Current Tax Liabilities 32 10.43 536
8,445.09 8,300,29
Total Equity And Liabilities 11,117.21 10,430.89

The above Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1to 58.

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
ICA! Firm Registration No. 103523Wf W100048
Chartered Accountants

Mayur Gupta
Parner
(M. No. 505629)

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 21, 2018

For and on behalf ¢f the Board of Directors

Lalit Jalan
Chairman

(WN 00270338)

Gopal K Saxena

Director
(DIN 00760036)

Anfanl K Sharma
Direclor
A (DIN 01180722)

Y PleinR. Kuper™™
CEQ

Surinder S Kohli
Director
{DIN 00168907)

Ajit K Ranade
Director
{DIN 00918651)

Virender Singh Verma
Director
{DIN 07843461)

Surya Shaniar BaneW!

CFO

(ICAI MN - 420131)

\I;ana R Ral
irector

{DIN 01625853)

Ryna Z Karani
Director
(DIN 00116930)

Suresh KM Agarwal
Corrwvg:etaw
(FCSe7751)
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND 1.OSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2018

Yoar Ended
Particulars Notes March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
{¥ in Crores) {Z In Crores)
|. Revenue From Operations 33 5,220.96 4,886.62
II. Other Income 34 25.92 28.56
Ill. Total Income (I+i) 5,246.88 4,915.18
IV, Expenses
Cost of Power Purchased 35 3,467.14 3,369.45
Employee Benefit Expense 36 361.18 270,32
Finance Costs 37 1,280.79 1,034.59
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 38 169.58 117.63
Other Expenses 38 330.53 281.18
Total Expenses (IV) 5,609.22 5,073.17
V. Profit/ {Loss) before Rate Regulated Activities and Tax (l[I-1V}) (362.34) (157.99)
V1. Net movement in Regulatory deferral account balances and related
deferred tax 40 412,74 199.92
Vil. Profitf (Loss) Before Tax (V+VI) 50.40 41.93
ViIl. Tax Expense
(1) Current Tax 4 10.09 7.99
(2) Deferred Tax
Provision for the year (464.93) 17.47
Less:- Adjustable in future tariff 464.93 (17.47)
1X. Profit/ (loss) for the year (Vil-VII) 40,21 33.94
X. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Re-measurement of defined benefit plan: Gains/ (loss) {3.39) (0.82)
Net movement in Regulatory deferral account balances
related to items recognised in QCI 3.62 0.88
Income Tax relating to above ltems 42 0.05 0.01
Other Comprehensive Income 0.18 0.05
Xl, Total Comprehensive Income for the Year (IX+X) 40.49 33.29
XIl. Earnings Per Equity Share of ¥ 10/- Each 43
Basic (3) per share 0.73 0.61
Diluted () per share 0.73 0.61
Basic before net movement in regulatory deferral account
balances (%) per share (6.70) (2.99)
Diluted before net movement in regulatory deferral account
balances (%) per share (6.70) (2.99)

The above Statement of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 58.

As per our report of even date

For Haribhakti & Co, LLP Lalit Jalan

ICAl Firm Registration No. 103523W/ W100048 Chairman

Chartered Accountants (DIN 00270338 )
Gopal K Saxena
Director

Mayur Gupta (DIN 00760036)

Partner "

{M. No. 505629 )

AN3ni K Sharma
Director
{DIN 01180722)

T‘Wmar

Place : New Delhi CEC

Date: April 21, 2018

S

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Surinder S Kohli
Director
(DIN 00169907}

AJit K Ranade
Director
(DIN 00918651)

Virender Singh Verma
Director
(DIN 07843481)

T Shankdr Banerji

CFO
(ICAI MN - 420131)

R\ana R R3j

Director
(DIN 01625853)

Ryna 2 Karani
Director
(DIN 00116930}

Su:%yﬂ Agarwal
Comyrany Secretary

(FCS-7751)
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Particulars

For the Year Ended

March 31, 2018
{Tin Crores)

March 31, 2017
{¥in Crores)

. |Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Profit Before Income tax 50.40 41.93
Adjustments For:
Depreciation and Amorlization expenses 169.58 117.63
Interest Income (1.05) (1.45)
Loss (net) on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 5.33 9.12
Transfer from Consumer Contribution for Capital Work (14.43) (7.26)
Transfer from Service Line Deposits (21.96) {21.38)
Provision for Doubtful Debts 9,70 417
. |Provision for Retirement of Inventory and Fixed Assets 9.73 -
Excess Provisions Written Back (0.24) (3.34)
Adjustment for Regulatory Deferral Account Balances (412.74) (199.92)
Adjustment for Other Comprehensive Income (3.39) {0.82)
Interest and Finance Charges 236.51 296.65
LPSC on Power Purchase 1,044.28 737.94
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes 1,071.72 973.27
Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Assets
Inventories 19.74 0.33
Trade Receivables {3.05) (12.03)
Cther Current and Non Current - Financial Assets (56.45) 585.86
Other Current and Non Current Assets (20.30) (379.15)
Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in Liabilities
Other Current and Non Current - Financial Liabilities {7.66) 4.14)
Service Line Deposit 27.08 28.98
Other Current and Non Current Liabilities 43.91 58.36
Trade Payables (288.32) (72.40)
Provisions 65.73 7.50
(219.32) 213.31
Cash Generated From Operations 852.40 1,186.58
Income Tax Paid (Including Tax deduxted at source) {10.87) (8.63)
Net Cash from/ (used in) Operating Activities () 841.53 1,177.956
.|Cash Flow from Investing Activities :-
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (335.33) (261.08)
Sale of Propenrty, Plant and Equipment 3.14 0.14
Consumer Contribution for Capital Works 6.05 61.41
Interest Raceived 1.10 1.41
Net Cash from/ (used in) Investing Activities (Il) (325.04) (198.10)
.|Cash Flow From Financing Activities :-
Interest Charges (246.41) (410.36)
Net {Repayment)/ Proceeds from Cash credit (271.44) (152.21}
Repayment of Long Term Borrowings (924.87) (568.42)
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings 994.91 144.83
Net Cash from/ (used in) Financing Activities (Ill) (447.81) (986.16)
Net Increase/ {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (I+1i+111) 68.68 (6.33)
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the commencement of the year 23,73 30.06
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year 92.41 23.73
Net Increase/ (Decrease) as disclosed above 68.68 (6.33)
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Disclosure of changes in liabilities arising from financing activities {Amount in ¥ Crores)
Term Loans including Short Term Loans- CC Total
Particulars current maturities
Opening Balance 935.36 599.18 1,634.54
Add:- Proceeds from long term borrowings 994.91 - 994.91
Less:- Repayment of borrowings {924.87) (271.44) (1,196.31)
Non Cash items :-
i) Acquisition 0.45 - 0.45
ii) Foreign exchange movements - - -
i} Fair value changes - - -
Closing Balance 1,005.85 327,74 1,333.59
The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes 1 to 58.
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors -
For Haribhakti & Co. LLP
ICAIl Firm Registration No. 103523W/ W100048 Lalit Jalan Surinder § Kohli Reha R \Bai
Chartered Accountants Chairman Director Director /
(DIN 00270338) (DIN 00169807) (DIN 01625853)

" MayurGupta
Partner
(M. No. 505628 )

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 21, 2018

Gopal K Saxena
Director

(DIN 00760036)

Anjani K Sharma
Director
(DIN 01180722)

PrerTR. Kumar
CEO

Ajit K Ranade
Director

(DIN 00918651)

Virender Singh Verma
Director
(DIN 07843461)

Ryna Z Karani
Director

(DIN 00116930)

Surya Shankar Banerji SureshKijmvar Agarwal

CFO
(ICAI MN - 420131)

Company Secretary
(FCS-7751)
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

A, Equity share capital

Particulars

Balance as at April 1, 2016

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as al March 31, 2017

Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2018

Amount
¥ in Crores

556.00

556.00

566.00

B. Other Equity

{Amount in ¥ Crores)

Reserves and Surplus

" Mayur-&lipta

Partner
{M=No. 505629)

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 21, 2018

Gopal K Saxena

Director
(DIN 00760036)

Anjahi K Sharma
Director
(DIN 01180722)

Premrf. Kumar
CEOQ

Ajit K Ranade

Director
(DIN 00918651)

Virender Singh Verma
Director
(DIN 07843461)

Surya Shankar E;anerji
CFC
(ICAI MN.~420131)

Pariculars Retained
Total
General Reserve Earnings °

Balance as at April 01, 2016 - 137.37 137.37
Profit as per statement of profit and loss for the year - 33.94 33.94
Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax - 0.05 0.05
Total comprehensive income for the year - 33.99 33.99
Balance as at March 31, 2017 - 171.36 171.36
Prefit as per statement of profit and loss for the year - 40.31 40.31
Other comprehensive income for the year net of income tax - 0.18 0.18
Total comprehensive income for the year - 40.49 40.49
Balance as at March 31, 2018 - 211.85 211.85

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos, 1 to 58,

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For Haribhakti & Co. LLP Lalit Jalan Surinder S Kohli \Rana R'Rai
ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W/ W100048 Chairman Director Director

- Chartered Accountants (DIN 00270338 ) (DIN 00169907) (DIN 01625853)

Ryna Z Karani

Director
{DIN 00116930)

Suresh Jufmar Agarwal
Company Secretary
(FCS-7751)

N D
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Corporata Information
BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED ( "BYPL® or * The Company * ) is a imited company incerporated in India having registered coffice at Shakti
Kiran Building , Karkardooma , Gelhi - 110032.

The Delhi Electrcity Distribution Model is a unique model based on Public Private Parinership (between Reliance Infrastructure Limited and
Govemnment of National Capital Territory of Delhi) acclaimed by varicus International bodies like World Bank, ADB, USAID efc. The Govemment
of National Capital Territory of Delhi (hereinafter referred to as "GeNCTD") initiated an enabling and futuristic step of privatising the erstwhile Delhi
Vidyut Board (DVB) with effect from July 1, 2002. Result of the privatization culminated in formation of BSES Yamuna Power Limited, under the
provisions of the then Companies Act, 1956, which also is, inter-alia, a distibution licensee within the ambit of the Electricity Act, 2003
(hereinafter referred to as “Act™) which ensured that provisions of the enactments specified in the Delhi Electricity Referms Act, 2000 (hereinafler
referred to as “DERA") (Delhi Act No. 2 of 2001), net inconsistent with the provisions of the Act remained applicable to Delhi, as it was part of the
Schedule referred to in Section 185 of the Act.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of distibution of electricity in East and Central district in the National Capital Territory. The
Company has been granted a license for distribution and retail supply of electricity by the Hon'kble DERC In March 2004.The License Is valid for a
period of 25 years.

Since the privatization, BYPL has traversed a long and successful Joumey to become one of the most respected utilities in the country. Over a
pericd of time, BYPL had been awarded certifications fike ISC 14001:2004 & OHSAS 18001;2007, while becoming an entity to be reckoned with.
BYPL today serves about 16 lakh satisfied consumers in Central and East Delhi,

These Financial Statement of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018 are autherized for issue by the Board of Directors on April 21,
2018,

Note 1 Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a Est of the Significant Accounting Policles adopted in the preparation of the Financial Statements of the Company. These
policies have been consistenlly applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

a) Basls of Proparation

(i) Statement of Compliance
The financial statements comply with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) natified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) to
be read with relevant rules and other accounting principles and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Further, the provisions of the Delhi Electricity Reform (Transfer Scheme) Rules, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as ‘Transfer Scheme') and other
relevant documents / agreements have also been taken into account while preparing the Financial Statements,

Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Information and disclosures mandated by Schedute Il of
the Companies Act 2013, applicable Ind AS, the applicable provisions cf the Electricity Act, 2003 and other applicable proncuncements and
regulations,

All ameunts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest crores as per the requirement of Schedule lIl,
unless otherwise stated.

(iiy Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis and, except for the following :
+ Certain Financial Assets and Liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at fair value; and
+ Defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at faiy value;

(i) New standards and Interpretations not yet effective
The MCA has nofified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2018 on March 28 2018, whereby “Ind AS-115 relating
to Revenue from Contracts with Customers®( Ind AS 115) has been made applicable from financlal year 2018-19 {i.e. April 01, 2018 onwards) .
Ind AS 115 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance, including Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 Construction Contracts.

Ind AS 115 Standard brings in a comprehensive and robust framework (5 Step’ Model) for recegnition, measurement and disclosure of revenue.
Ind AS 115 prescribes only one underying principle for revenue recognition i.e. transfer of control over gocds/services and replaces the ‘fair
value’ concept with *Transactions Price’ which is better suited for measurement of revenue. It also provides guidance to bring in clarily in areas
such as multiple element contracts/bundled products, licensing, royalfies for intellectual properties, financing components, variable consideration;
and regquires more improved disclosures to help investors and analysts better under standard entity's revenue. The standard also permits the use
of elther the retrospective or cumulative effect transition pariod

The Cempany is evaluating the requirements of Ind AS 115 and has not yet determined the impact on the financial statements

(iv) Others
Financial Statements has been prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with the applicable accounting standards prescribed in the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with subsequent amendments issued by the Central Government .

The Company does not have any investment in or control over the cther entities. Therefore, the Company does not require any consalidated
financial statement. Hence, these financiat statement prepared are on standalone basis.

b) Current versus Non-Current Classification
The Company presents assets and liabiliies except regu’atory assets in the Financlal Stalement based on cumrentf non-current classification.

An assetis treated as current when it is:

= Expected to be realized or infended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle.

» Expected 10 be realized within twelve menths after the reporting period, or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liabilily for at [east twelve months after the reporting period,

» held primarily for the purpose of trading.
Wl other assets are classified as non-current.

bility is current when:

is expected to be settled in normal operaling cycle.

-5 is due to be selled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

here Is no unconditional right to defer the setllemen? of the liability for at least twelve months after the reperting period.
held primarily for the purpose of trading.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes fo Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities,

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, The Company
has Identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Regulatory Assets are presented as separate line Hem distinguished from assets and liabilities as per Ind AS 114,

¢} Foreign Currency Translation

(i) Functional and Presentation Currency
tems included in the Financial Statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the enlity operates
i.e. ‘the functional currency’, The Financial Statements are presented In Indian rupee (¥ INR), which is Company's functional and presentation
CUITENCY.

(i} Transactions and Balances
Foreign currency transactions are transtated inte the functional currency using exchange rates at the date of the transaction, Foreign exchange
gains and losses from setilement of these transactions, and from translation of monetary assets and liabilities at the reporting date exchange
rates are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

d} Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefit will flow to the Company and revenue can be reliably measured.

Revenue from sale of power is recognised on the basis of biling to consumers based on billing cycles followed by the Company which is inclusive
of Power Purchase Adjustment Charges (PPAC) and unbilled revenue for the year. Consumers are billed on the basis of recording of
cansumption of electricity by installed melers. Where meters have stopped or are faully, the biling is done based on the assessment of past
consumption, usage of appliances, etc, Unbilled revenue is reccgnised on supply of energy fo various consumers accrued upto the end of
reparting peried, which is billed to respective censumers in the subsequent biling cycle falling in the next reporting period.

Revenue frem Late Payment Surcharge (LPSC) on electricily billed and dishonest abstraction of power are recegnised on colleclion basis.

Other Income:
insurance and other claims are recognised as revenue on certainty of receipt on prudent basis.

Income from advertisements, rentals and others is recagnised in accordance with terms of the contracts with cusiomers based on the pericd for
which the facilities have been used,

Revenue from a contract to provide consultancy services is reccgnised by reference to the stage of the completion of the contract. Foreseeable
losses on such contracts are recognised when probable.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate methed, The effective interest rate is the rate thal exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument {for example,
prepayment. extension, call and similar cptions) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Lease in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating Jeases,
Assets subject to operating leases are included in fixed assets. Lease income on an operating lease is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on a straight-line basls over the lease term. Costs, including depreciation, are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, efc. are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

The Company determines ravenue gaps (i.e. surplus/shortfall in actual returns over returns entitied) in respect of its regulated operations in
accordance with the provisions of Ind AS 114 “*Regulatory Defemal Accounts® read with the Guidance Nele on Rate Regulated Activities issued
by ICAl and based on the principles [aid down under the relevant Tanff Regulations / Tariff Orders nofified by the Electricity Regulator and the
actual or expected actions of the regulator under the applicable regulatory framework. Appropriate adjustments in respect of such revenue gaps
are made in the revenua of the respeclive year for the amounts which are reasonably determinable and no significant uncertainty exists in such
determination, These adjustments / accruals representing revenue gaps are carried forward as Regulatory deferral accounts debit batances and
related deferred lax balances as the case may be in the financial statements, which would be recovered f refunded through future billing based
on future tariff determination by the regulator in accordance with the electricity regulations.

Revenue from street light maintenance is recognised on the basis of numbers of poles maintained for Municipal Corporations of Delhl.

a) Banking Arrangements of Power
The Company enters into banking arrangements of powers with other power generatorsitraders to bank power and vice versa and take back or
return the banking power over agreed period. The power banking transactions both way are recorded in conformity with the rates promulgated by
DERC directives as applicable.

f) Government Grants
Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the
Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Gevemment grants refating to income are deferred and recognised in the statement of prefit and loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate and presentad within other income.

Govemment grants relating to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-cument liabilities as deferred income and are
credited to the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets and presented within' other
incoma.

g) Consumer Contribution for Capital Works and Service Line Charges
Consumer's contribution towards cost of capilal assels Is treated as capital receipt and credited in liabilities until transferred to a separate account
on capitalization of the assets. An amount equivalent to the depreciation on such assets is appropriated from this account as income fo the
statement of profit and loss over the useful life of the assets.
The amount received from consumers on account of service line deposits are treated as capital receipt and is credited to separate account and
amount equivalent to the depreciation on such assets is appropriated from this account as incoms to the statement of profit and loss over the
useful life of the assets.


41018442
Stamp

41018442
Stamp


BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

h) Income Tax
, Income tax expense for the year comprises of current fax and deferred tax. Income tax Is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except
to the extent that it relates to lems recognised in ‘Other comprehensive income' or directly in equity and Regulatory Assets, in which case the tax
is recognised in ‘Other comprehensive inceme” or directly In equity and Regulatory Assets respectively. First time adoption adjustments as on
April 01, 2015 under Ind AS considered for computation of MAT fiability as per section 115JB equally for five years starting from Financial Year
2016-17.

The Income tax expense or credit for the period Is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

The current income tax charge Is calculated on the basis of the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period. The
Company establishes provisions where apprepriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Eabilty method, on temporary diffetences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilties
and their carrying amounts in the Financial Statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liabfity is settied.

Deferred tax asseis are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future taxable
amounts will be available to utilize those temporary differences and losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the same taxaticn
authority, Current lax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to sefle on a
net basis, of to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In accordance with the Multi Year Tanff (MYT) Regulations issued by DERC from time to time for determination of power tariff, the Income-Tax
liability shall be censidered for tariff determination. The same will be adjusted in future as and when the deferred tax converts to current tax.

i} Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is {or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease.
The arrangement is, (or contains), a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the
arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

As a lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as
finance leases, Finance leases are capitalized al the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The comesponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in bommowings of ciher financial liabilities as
appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of profit and
less over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. Contingent
rentals are recagnised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred,

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as lessee are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operafing leases (net of any incentives received from the lesser) are charged to the Statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in ine with expected general inflation
to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases.,

il Impairment of Non-Financlal Assets

Assessment for impairment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indicaticn that a non-financial asset may be impaired.
Indefinite-life intangibles are subject to a review for impairment annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that i is
necessary.

For the purpose of assessing impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assels or group of assets is considered as a cash generating unit, Goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, frem the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Company's cash-generating unils that are expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, irespective of whether other assets or liabfiities of the acquire are assigned to those units.

If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the individual asset/cash generating unit is made. Asset/cash
generating unit whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable amount are written down to the recoverable amount by recognizing the
impairment loss as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if any) allocated to the cash generating unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit, Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Value in use
is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset or cash generating unit and from its
disposal at the end of its useful life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment
loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting pericds may no fonger exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets
carying amount does not exceed the canying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation and amortization, if no impairment
loss had been recognised. An impairment less recognised for goodwill Is not reversed in subsequent periods.

k) Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpase of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash cn hand, deposits held at call with
financial institutions, other shor-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible 1o
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valus, and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafts are shown within
herrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet,

I} Trade Recejvables
Trade receivables are recognised initially at transaction value less provision for impairment,

The Company’s trade receivable are generally non interest bearing if paid within the due dates. Mowever, the Company charges LPSC if paid
after due dates,

m} Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, Cosls are assigned to individual items of inventory on weighted average basis,
Cost includes purchase price, freight inwards and cther expenditure incurred in bringing such inventories to their present location and condition.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the esfimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on an item by item basis. Provisions are made for obsolete and non moving inventories,
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

n) Financlal Instruments
The Company recognizes financial assets and liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All financial
assets and liabililes are recognised at fair values on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at transaction
price.

Financial Assets
{i) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:

» those fo be measured subsequently at fair value {either through other comprehensive income, or thiough prefit o loss), and
« those measured at ameriized cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business medel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, galns and losses will either be recorded in Statement of profit and loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments,
this will depend on whether the Company has made an imevocable election at the time of initizl recognition to account for the equity investment at
fair value through other comprehensive income. This election is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading.

The Company reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business model for managing those assets changes,

(i) Measurement
At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through prefit
or loss, transaction costs that are directly attibutabla to the acquisition of the financiz] asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or less are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered In their entirety when determining whether thelr cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Subsequent

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing the assetl and the cash fiow
characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

» Amortized cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortized cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amartized cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.

» Falr value through other comprehensive income [FVOCI). Assels that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets' cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through QCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or
losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognized, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised In OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised in other gains/
(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income using the effective interest rate methed. At present no Financial
Assets fulfil this condition.

« Falr value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortized cost or FYOC! are measured at fair value through profit or
loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss and Is net part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in the statement of profit and loss and presented net in the statement of profit and loss within other gains/(losses) in the
period in which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value. Where the Company’s management has elected o present fair value
gains and Josses on equity investments in other comprehensive income, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and lesses to
the statement of profi and loss. Dividends from such investments are reccgnised in the statement of prcfit and loss as cther income when the
Company's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the falr value of financiz! assels at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses
(and reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments measured at FVOCI| are not reported separately from other changes in falr value,

{iiij Impalrment of Financial Assets
The Company assesses cn a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets canied at amortized cost and FVOCI
debt Instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.
For trade receivables only, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 “Financlal Instruments®, which requires
expected credit loss allowance to be recognised for intial recognition of the receivable, The Company has also used a pratical expedient i.e
provision matnx for their determination as perInd AS 109,

{iv} De-reccgnition of Financial Assets
A financial asset is derecognized only when:
* The Company has transferred tha rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
» retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assel, but assumes a contractuza! obligation te pay the cash flows to one
or mcre recipients,
Where the enfity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred substantially all isks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset. In such cases, the financial asset is derecognized,
VWhere the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor refains substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the
financial asset is derecognized if the Company has not retalned control of the financial asset. Where the Company relains contrel of the financial
assat, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the financial assel.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

0} Financial Liabilittes
Initial recognition and measurement
Afl financial liablittes are recognised initially at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly atiributable
transaction costs, The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafis.

Subsequent measurement

Financlal liabilities at amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilties are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

a) Borowings

Borrewings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequentfy measured at amortized cost, Any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the statement of profit and loss over the
period of the barrowings using the EIR. Fees paid on the establishment of loan faciiities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the
extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs, To the
axtent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalized as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortized over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Barrewings are removed from the balance shaet when the obligation specified in the contract Is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the camying amount of a financial liability that has been extinguished or {ransferred to ancther party and the consideration paid, including
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilties assumed, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Borrowings are classified as current liabllities unless the Company has an unconditional dght to defer setilement of the liability for at least 12
moenths after the reporting pariod. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan arrangement on or befare the end of the
reparting period with the effect that the liability becomes payable on demand on the reporting dats, the entity does net classify the llability as
current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a
consequence of the breach.

b} Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. Trade
and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months afler the reporting period, They are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amoytized cos{ using the effective interest method.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability Is
replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing Eabilty are substantially modified, such an
exchange of modification is treated as the derecognition of the criginal liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference In the
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

p) Falr Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement da‘e. The fair value measurement is based on the presumpticn that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either:
» In the principal market for the asset or liabllity, or
+ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company,
The fair value of an asset or a Kability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when gricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market paricipants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market paricipant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liablities
Level 2- Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is uncbservable,

For assets and liabililies that are recognised in the financial statements on a recuring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurted between levels In the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that Is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting peticd.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recuming and non—recurring fair value measurement, such as
derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

At each reporling date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilties which are required to be remeasured or
re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policles. For this analysis, the management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant extemal sources to determine whether the
change is reasonable,

For the purpose cf fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics
and risks of the asset or liabllity and the level of the fair value hisrarchy as explained above,

q) Derivatives

(i) Derivatives that are not designated as hedges
Derivatives including forward contracts are inifially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative conlract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The Company does not designate their dervatives as hedges and such
contracts are accounted for at fair value through profit or lass and are included in statement of profit and loss.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2013

(i Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with the effect that
scme of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or afl
of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the confract to be medified according to a specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, Index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provided in the case cf a non-
financial variable that the variable is not specific to a parly to the contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would ctherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value
through profit or loss.

Derivatives embedded in a host coniract that is an asset within the scope of Ind AS 109 are not separated. Financia! assets with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payment of principal and interest.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contract are separated only if the economic characterstics and risks of the embedded derivative are not
closely related to the economie characteristics and risks of the host and aré measured at fair value through profit or loss, Embedded denivatives
closely related to the host contracts are not separated.

The Company currently doas not have any such derivatives which are not closely related,

r) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
the recognised amounts and there is an intention fo settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liabilty simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be centingent on future events and must be enforceakble in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insclvency or bankrupicy of the Company or the counterparty.

s} Property plant and equipment
Tangible assets except assets transferred from erstwhile DVB are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, if any. Cost
comprises the purchase price, any cost atiributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its intended use and initial estimate of costs
of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site, if any. )

Assets transferred from erstwhile DVB are stated at the transaction value as notified by the GoNCTD under the transfer scheme. Values
assigned lo different heads of individual fixed assets as on the date of the transfer L.e. July 01, 2002 are as perindependent valuer's cerificate,

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recagnised as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits asscciated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The canrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset Is derecognized when replaced. All cther repairs and maintenance are charged to
the statement of profit and less during the reporting period in which they are incurred.

All project refated expenditure viz, Civil works, Machinery under erection, construction and erection materals, precperative expenditure incidental
{ attributable to the construction of projects, bomowing cost incurred prior to the date of commercial operations and trial run expenditure are
shown under Capital Work in Progress.

An asset's camying amount is written down to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Transition to Ind AS - Deemed cost
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of al! of its property, plant and equipment recognised as at
April 01, 2015 measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the Intangible Assets.

t) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are staled at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to its working condition for its Intended use. An intangible asset is recognised when it is
piobable that the future economic benefits atiributable to ihe asset will flow to the enterprise and where its cost can be reliably measured.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
future economic benefits asscciated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Transition to Ind AS - Deemed cost
On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the camrying value of al} of its intangible assets recognised as at April 01, 2015
measured as per the Indian GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment,

u) Depreciation and amortization methods, estimated usaful lives and residual value
[n accordance with Part B of Schedule 1l of the Companies Act 2013, depreciationfamortization on fixed assets has been computed based on
rate or useful life given in DERC regulations. However, In case of assets where no useful! life is prescribed in DERC regulation, the useful life and
residual value as given in Part C of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013 is followed. Further, in case cf any class of asset where useful life as
estimated by management and/ or cerlified by Independent valuer is lower than DERC or Part C of Schedule Il of the Companles Act, 2013 then
such lower useful Efe is followed for computing depreciation on such asset.

Depreciaticn en refurbished/revamped assets which are capitalized separately is provided for over the reassessed useful life,

Residual value is taken at the rate of 10% of assets based on DERC regulations or based on independent valuer assessment, as applicable.

Till March 31, 2017, depreciation has been computed based on straight line methed following the useful life’s mentioned as under:

Description of Assets Useful Life of
Asset [In Years)

I. Buildings:
a) Buildings & Pucca Roads &0
b) Temporary Structures 5
Il. Plant & Machinery :
a) Transformers & Swilchgears 25
b} Lightening Arrestors 25
c) Batteries 5
d) Energy Meters® 10
2} Distribution Systems :
- Overhead Lines 25

- Underground Cables 35
II. Furniture & Fixtures 15

IV, Office Equipments
a) Communication Equipments® 10
b) Office_ Equipments & Cthers 15
V. Compulers #
a) Hardware

3
b) Software, Servers & Networking Equipment 8
V1. Vehicles . 5
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statemonts for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

* Useful life of assefs is determined based on independent valuer's cerdificate

On February 1, 2017, DERC has nofified DERC Tariff Regulations, 2017 (*Mew Regulations”) which is effective from April 1, 2017. New
regulations has revised the rate of computation of depreciation for certain block of assets and has also revised the useful life for certain block of
assels, Details of changes made by New Regulations are as follows:

a) _Assel class where tho useful life has been revised

Assets Class Old Useful Life Now Useful Life
Furniture & Fixiure 15 10
Office Equipment 15 10
Vehicles 5 10
Temporary Structure 5 Nil
Computer ~ Hardware# 3 ]

b) Asset elass where the rale of computation of depreciation has been revised fuseful life remain constant)

Assets Class Old Rates Rate™ { for initial 12
years)
Teansformer , switchgear lightening arrestors and 3.60% 5.83%
Overhead Lines including cable supports
Underground cable including joint boxes and disconnected 2.57% 5.83%
boxes
Computer — Scltware# 15% 16.67%

**Rate after 12 years shall be computed based on the balance depreciable value spread over remaining useful life of assets
# For Computers Hardware and Computer Software, salvage value has been considered as Nil in the New Regulations.

As aresult of the above, the increase in depreciation expenses for the year ended March 31, 2018 Is T 46.04 Crore.

Depreciation/ amortization methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factars including the effects of obsolescence, demand,
competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the industry and non technological advances) and the level of maintenance
expenditures required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the assets.

The residual values are ot more than 10% of the original cost of the assets.

The Company reviews, at the end of each reporting date, the useful life of Property, Plant and Equipment and residual value thereof and
changes, if any, are adjusted prospectively, as appropriate.

¥) Borrowing Costs
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construstion o production of a qualifying asset are capitalized
during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assels thal
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization,

Other barrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

w) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a prosent legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required fo settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of simifar cbligations, the likelihcod that an outflow will be required in setiement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of
cbligations may be small,

Provisions are measured at the present value of the management's best estmate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at
tha end of the reporting period The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific fo the liability. The increase in the provision due 1o the passage of time is recognised as finance
cost.

When some or all of the economic benefits required {o setfle a provision are expecied to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is
recognised as an asset, if it is virtwally certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the recelvable can be measured refiably.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of Profit and Loss net of reimbursements, if any.

x) Contingent Liabilitles and Contingent Assels:
A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be cenfirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognised because i is prabable
that an outflow of resources will not be required to settle the cbligation. However, if the possibllity of cutflow of resources, arising out of present
obligation, is remote, it is not even disclosed as contingent liakbility.

A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannol ba recognised because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the notes to financial statements. A Contingent asset
is not recognised in financial statements, however, the same is disclosed where an inflow of econamic benefit is probable,

¥l Employee Benefits :

(iy Short-term obligations
Liabilities for salaries and wage, including non-monetary benefits that are expected o be settled wholly wilthin 12 months after the end of the
period in which tha employeas render the related service are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilifies are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance shaet,

(i) Other long-term employee benefit obligations
Employees other than Erstwhile DVB Employees

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave which are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the
mployees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
rvices provided by employees up 1o the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The benefits are discounted using
market yields at the end of the reporting pericd that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation, Remeasurements as a

It of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.

gyfe ohligations are presented as current liabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer setttement for at
ast twelve months after the reperting peried, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to cccur.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Erstwhile DVB Employees
The liability for retirement pension payable to the Special Voluntary Retiremnet Schems optees till their respective dates of superannuation or

death {(whichever is earfier) is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary at the year end.

The half pay leave Gability, consisting of availment, lapse and compensated absence, while in service as per rules of the Company, is calculated
in accordance with Ind AS-19. The liability is provided on the basis of actuarial valuation done by an independent actuary at the year end.

They are measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting pericd using the projected unit credit methed. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period
that have terms approximating to the terms of the related cbligation,

(iiy Post-employment obligations

Employees other than Erstwhile DVB Employees

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
{a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity, leave encashment; and
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund, superannuaticn fund etc.

Defined benefit plans

Gratuity obfigations

The liability or asset recognised in the financial statement in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit
cbligation at the end of the reporting pericd less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The prasent value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market ylelds at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation, The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and tha fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.
Remeasurement of gains and losses ansing from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the perod in
which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
financial statement. Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtaiments are
recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. The Company contributes to a Trust set up by the Company which further
contributes to plans taken from Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA) approved Insurance Companies,

Leave encashment

Long-term leave encashment is provided for on the basis of an actuaria! valuation carried out at the end of the year on the projected unit credit
method, Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss,

Defined Coniribution plans

The Company pays provident fund centributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local regulations. The Company has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid, The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent
that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available. The Company coniributes towards Superannuation to a Trust set up by the
Company which further contributes to plans taken from Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA) approved Insurance
Campanies. The Company makes menthly contributions based on a specified percentage of each eligible employee's salary.

Employees of Erstwhile Delhl Vidyut Board {DVB) [presently employees of the Company)

In accordance with the stipulation made by the GoNCTD in its notification dafed January 16, 2001 the contributions on account of the general
provident fund, pension, graluity and eamed leave as per tha Financial Rules and Service Rules applicable in respect of the employees of the
erstwhile DV, is accounted for on due basis and are paid to the Delhi Vidyut Board — Employess Terminal Benefit Fund 2002 (DVB ETBF 2002).
Further the retirement benefits are guaranteed by GoNGCTD. All such payments made to the DVB ETBF 2002 are charged off to the statement of
profit and loss.

z) Contributed equity
Equity shares are classified a3 equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

aa) Earnings Per Share
Basic Earnings per Equity Share (BEPS) is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to Equity Sharehoiders of the Company by the
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares outstanding during the financial year.

For the purpose of caleulading Dituted Earnings Par Share (DEPS), the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equily shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the peried are adjusted for the effects of all dlutive potentiz! equity shares.

Both BEPS and DEPS have been calculated with and without considering income from rate regulated activities in the Net Profit atiributable to
Equity Shareholders.

ab) Financial Guarantee Contracts recognised as financial assels on the date of transilion to Ind AS. The same is measured at estimated fair value
based on the saving in interest cost and subsequently amontized over the tenure of the loan,

Note 2 Critical estimates and judgements
The preparation of financlal statements requires the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seldom equal the actual results.
Management also needs to exercise judgment in applying the Company’s accounting policles

This note provides an overview of the areas that involved a higher degree of judgment or complexity, and of items which are more likely to be
materially adjusted due to estimates and assumptions turning out to be different than those originally assessed. Detailed information about each
of these estimates and judgments is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each affected tine item
in the financial statements.

The areas inveolving critical estimates and judgments are:

i, Useful life of properly, plant and equipment

The estimated useful ife of property, plant and equipment is based on a number of factors including the effects of absolescence, demand,
competition and other economic factors {such as the stabllity of the industry and known technelogical advances) and the level of mainlenance
expenditures required o obiain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

wa Company reviews, at the end of each reporting date, the useful life of propedy. plant and equipment and changes, if any, are adjusted

D¥spectively, if appropriate

% ecoverable amount of property, plant and equipment

5k recoverable amaount of prpaery, plant and equipment is based on estimates and assumptions regarding in particular the expected market
loak and future cash flows. Any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact on the measurement of the recoverable amount

and could result in impairment.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

iii. Estimaticn of defined benefit cbligation

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality and withdrawa! rates as well as
assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that
the assumptions used to measure its cbligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumpticns may have a
material impact on the resulting calcutations.

iv. Estimation of Deferred tax assets for carry forward losses and current tax expenses
The Company review carrying amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been

explained under Note no 1(h),

v, Impaimment of Trade Receivables
The Company review carmrying amount of trade receivables at the end of each reperting period and provide for expected credit loss. The palicy for
the same explained in the Note no.1{n) (ii)).

Refer note 46 on financial risk management where credit risk and refated impairment disclosures are made.

vi, Regulatory Assels

The Company determines revenue gap for the year (i.e, shortfall in actual returns over assured returns) based on the principles laid down under
the MYT Regulations and Tariff Orders issued by DERC. At the end of each accouniing period, Company alsc determines regulatory
asselsfregulatory liabilities in respect of each accounting period on self true up basis on principles specified in accounting policy Note 1(d)
wherever regulator is yet to take up formal truing up process,

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of juture
events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed to be reascnable under the circumstances.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Note 3: Property, plant and equipment

Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2012

Amounts in ¥ Crores

PLANT & EQUIPMENT

OFFICE EQ

UIPMENT

FURNITURE OTHER CAPITAL
BUILDINGS TRANSFORMERS & | LIGHTENING ENERGY QVERHEAD AND COMMUNICATION VEHICLE| TOTAL | WORKIN
BATTERIES UNDERGROUND OFFICE COMPUTER

SWITCHGEARS ARRESTOR METERS CABLE LINES FIXTURES EQUIPMENT EQUIPMENTS PROGRESS
'Year ended March 31, 2017
Gross camrying amount
Opening gross carrying amount 64.35 569.98 .76 284 | 240,78 766,45 188,73 5,66 4.32 46.19 18.63 131 | 191297
Additiens during the year - 50.77 0.08 0.06 T2.57 68.33 3.38 0.47 0.60 3.23 4.48 4,02 207,97
Additions on account of InterestOverhead - 1247 0,03 0,01 263 17.50 0.8 - 0.04 015 0.60 - 34.26
Disposals - 1.95 - - 10.20 - - - 0.07 0.00 0.03 042 12,36
Closing qress carrying ameunt 64,38 631.26 3.87 29 305.78 852.28 192.94 613 4.89 49.56 23.65 5.22 | 2142.84 -
Accumulated depreclation and impalrment
Opening accumulated depreciation and
impaimment 1.68 2476 0.21 0.63 4.61 24.28 10.11 - 0.34 3.84 544 0.27 76.17
Depreciation charge during the year 1.68 28.05 0.21 0.68 37.05 26.26 1017 0.39 045 292 6524 0.38 115.49
Disposals - 0.20 - - 2.80 = = - 0.01 0.00 - 0.07 3.07
Closing accumulated depreclation and
|impal t 3.37 52,61 0.42 1,34 38.87 50,53 20.29 0.39 0.73 T.76 11.68 0.60 188.68
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2047 60.92 578.66 348 160 ] 26691 801.75 172.65 5.74 4.1 41.80 11.98 462 ) 1,954.26 83.10
Year ended March 31, 2018
Gross cammying amount
Opening gross camying amount 64,35 631,26 3.87 291 Jos.78 g62.28 192.94 6.13 4.39 49,56 23.65 522 | 214284
Additions during the year 0,53 81,09 0.22 0,68 62.63 110.73 6.60 1.06 0.35 1245 70 0.69 280.48
Additions en account of InterestOverhead - 23.52 0.07 0.20 218 a0.88 204 - - 262 1.87 - 62.38
Disposals - 2.29 - - 8.07 - - - 0.20 0.3¢ 0.10 0.32 11.30
Closing gross earrying amournt 64.93 733.58 446 273 362.52 993.89 201.58 713 5.04 64.02 2912 558 | 247540 -
Accumulated depreciation and Impalment
Opening accumulated depreciation and
impairment .37 52.61 0.42 1.3 38.87 50.53 20,29 0,39 0.78 7.76 11.68 0.60 188.61
Depreciation charge during the year 1.68 45.27 .31 0.58 38.03 56.85 14.72 0.9 0.47 6.33 3.36 0.44 168.40
Disposals - 0.39 - - 2.34 - = - 0,05 - 0.01 0.04 283
Closing accumulated depreclation and
Impalrment 5.08 97.49 0.73 1.89 74.56 107.38 35.01 2.78 1.20 14.09 15.03 1.00 354.18
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 §9.88 636.09 243 1.90 287.96 886.51 166.57 6,41 2.84 49.93 14.09 4.58 | 2121.21 75.67
Add:- Inventory for Capital Works Including Goods In Transit (GIT) €840
Less:- Provision for Non Moving [nventory for Capital Works {4.42)
[Met CWIP including CapHal Inventory 139.35
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[BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Staterments for the Year Ended March 21, 2018

(i) The Company has efected to measure all of its Property, Plant and Equipments at their previous GAAP carmying value as at April 1, 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS).

{1i) Property, plant and equipment pledged as security
‘Tangible assets (including work in progress) are subject to first pari passu charge to secure the Company’s borrowings referred in notes as secured term loan from financial instituticns and banks in the current and previous year. (Refer Note 20 & 27).

{Lil) Contractual obligations
Reter to nete 47 for disclasure of contractual commitments for the acguisifion of Preperty, Plant and Equipments.

(Iv) The amount of borrowing costs capitalised to Gross Block of Fixed Assets during the year ended March 31, 2018 is 2 7.75 crores (March 31, 2017: T 4,69 crores). The rate used Lo detenmine the amount of bomowing costs eligible for capitafisation for the year ended March 31,
2018 was 13.60% (March 31, 2017 - 13.81%) which is weighted average interest rate of bormowing.

{v] Plant and equipment contributed by customers

The Entity recognises as plant and equipment any contributicn mada by various Govi. agencles/ cthers to be utilised In the transmission and distribution process and that meets the definition of an asset. The initial gross ameunt is estimated al fair value by reference to the market
price of these assets on the date in which control is obtained, Refer Note 23 for amount that the Company has gnised a3 plant and equip and Note 33 for revenue recognised during the year,

(v[) CWIP Movement

Capital work in progress as at March 31, 2018 comprises expenditure for the property plant and equipment in the course of construction. Borrewing cost amounting to ¥ 2.38 Creres (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 3.14 Crores) and persernel cost amounting te T 15.24 Creres (March 31,
2017 - ¢ 14,96 Crores) have been added to CWIP.

Amounts fn ¥ Crores

Particulars. Year Opening Additlon Capitalisation Closing
CWIP Mavement 2017-18 83.10 270.08 277.52 75.67
CWIP Movement 201617 78.28 170.07 165.25 83.10

{vii) Further, CWIP afso Includes capital inventory of T 66.10 Crores (March 31, 2017 - 68,00 Crores) and is net of provision for non-moving for the year ended March 31, 2018 ¥ 4.42 crores (March 31, 2017 T Ni),

Break-up of CWIP:-

Particular 201718 201647

CWIP - Scheme 75.67 83.10 .
Add:- Invertory tor Capital Works including Geods in Transit 68.10 68.00

Less:- Pravision for Non Moving lnventory far Capital Werks (4.42) -

Total CWIP 139,25 151,10
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Note 4: Other intangible assets Amounts in ¥ Crores
Computer
software Total

Year ended March 31, 2017
Gross carrying amount

1O0pening gross carrying amount 9.47 9.47
Additions during the year - -
Closing gross carrying amount 9.47 9.47
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2.37 237
Amortisaticn charge for the year 2.14 214
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 4.51 4.51
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2017 4.96 4.96

Year ended March 31, 2018
Gross carrying amount

Opening gross carrying amount 9.47 9.47
Additions during the year 3.16 3.16
Closing gross carrying amount 12.63 12.63
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 4,51 4.91
Amortisation charge for the year 1.18 1.18
Closing accumulated amortisation and impairment 5.69 5.69
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 6.94 6.94

(i) The Company has elected to measure all of its Intangible Assets at their previous GAAP carrying
value as at April 01, 2015 (date of transition to Ind AS).

(i) Internally generated Computer Softwares as at March 31, 2018 ¥ Nil (March 31, 2017 T NIL)

(iii) Intangible assets are subject to first pari passu charge to secure the Company's borrowings referred
in notes as secured term loan from financial institutions and banks in the current and previous year. (
Refer Note 20 & 27).

(iv) Land

Under the provisions of Delhi Electricity Reforms (Transfer Scheme 2001) Rules, vide Delhi Gazette
Notification dated November 20, 2001, the successor utility companies are entitled to use certain Lands
as a licensee of the Government of Delhi, cn "Right to Use" basis on payment of a consolidated amount
of ¥ 1/- per month.
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Amounts in T Crores

Note § Restricted Deposits with Banks As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017
Margin Money with Banks 93.75 13.94

Total 93.75 13.94
Nature

The restrictions are primarily on account of fixed deposit held as security against debt servicing coverage which
cannot mature till the loan has been repaid.
Terms & Conditions
The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits, which can be withdrawn by the
Company at any point subject to compliance of restrictions.

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note 6 Non Current Loans As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017

Unsecured, considered good

Loans to Staff 0.05 0.05
Total 0.05 ) 0.05

For explanation an the Company credit risk management process (Refer Note 48).

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note 7 Other Non Current Financial Assets As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017
Recoverable from SVRS Trust {Refer Note 48(B)(I)} 0.65 1.15
Security Deposits 0.73 0.33
Other Advances - 1.22

Total 1.38 2.70

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process (Refer Note 486).
Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note 8 Other Non Current Assets As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017
Capital Advances 0.40 0.29
Advance other than Capital Advance:-
(i) Advance Tax ¢ 0.50 -
(i) Income Tax deposited under protest 1.00 1.50
(iii) Income tax refund receivable 2.82 215
{iv) Financial guarantee receivable - 7.04
Total 4.72 10.98
i

Ll

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note-9 Inventories As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017
Stores & Spares 24.45 31.84
Goods in Transit 0.37 8.89
Inventory of REAP project 0.08 0.08
Less:- Provision for Non Moving Inventories {3.83) -
Total 21.07 40.81

Inventory comprises stores and spares which are consumable in repair and maintenance of service lines and other
equipments {Refer Note 39).

Provision of inventories on account of non- moving items for the year ended March 31, 2018 T 3.83 Crores {March
31, 2017 T Nil).
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note-10 Current Trade Receivables As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017
{A) Trade Receivables - Sale of Power
(i) Secured Considered Good 85.22 81.39
{ii) Unsecured Considered Good 125.10 117.06
(iii) Doubtful 131.50 136.43
341.82 334.87
Less : Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts * 131.50 136.43
210,32 198.44
{B) Trade Receivables - Bulk Sale of Power
Unsecured Considered Good 5.51 23.39
Unsecured Considered Doubtful 7.92 -
13.43 23.39
Less: Allowance for Bad and Doubtful debts * 7.92 -
5.51 23.39
{C) Trade Receivables - Open Access
Unsecured Considered Good 1.09 1.74
1.09 1.74
Total 216.92 223.57

* The Company has measured Expected Credit Loss of trade receviable based on simplified approach as per Ind
AS 109 "Financial Instruments” (Refer note no 46),

1.Trade Receivable are subject to second pari passu charge to secure the Company's borrowings referred in notes
as secured term loan from financial instituion and banks in the current and previous year (Refer Note 20 & 27).

2. No Trade or other receivable are due from director or other officer of the Company and firms or private
companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member either jointly or severally with other persons
except normal utility bills (Refer Note 45).

3. Trade recelvables are non-interest bearing and are generally receivable on terms of 15 to 30 days.The Company

charge LPSC as per the policy of the Company after the due date.

4. For explanation on the Company credit risk management process (Refer note no. 46).
5. For terms and condition of trade receivable owing from related parties (Refer note 45).

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note-11 Cash and Cash Equivalents As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017
Balances with banks - Current accounts 69.13 5.20
Cheques, draft on Hand 21.79 17.14
Cash on Hand 1.49 1.39
Total 92,41 23.73

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process (Refer note no. 46)
Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note-12 Bank balances other than cash and cash

. As at Narch 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017

eguivalents
Restricted Balance With Bank 10.26 2.49
Restricted balances with Cthers 0.22 0.21
Total 10.48 2.70

1. The Company had available ¥ 10.26 Crores (March 31, 2017- ¥ 2.48 Crores) under fixed deposits with maturity of
less than twelve months held with Banks as rectricted deposit for the debt servicing coverage and mortgage
charges. As at March 31, 2018, the company had repaid the term loans availed from banks, however the restriction
is yet to be discharged.

2, Restircted balances with Others are-fixext-deposits mature within 12 months are submitted with Hon'ble courts
against various legal cases.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

3. Terms & Conditions

Company at any point subject to compliance of restrictions.

4. For explanation on the Company credit risk management process (Refer Note 46).

The deposits maintained by the Company with banks comprise of time deposits, which can be withdrawn by the

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note 13 Current Loans As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017

Unsecured, Considered good

Loans to Staff 0.80 0.86
Total 0.80 0.86

For explanation on the Company credit risk management process. (Refer nole no. 46).

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note-14 Other Current Financial Assets

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Recoverable from DVB ETBF 2002 Trust{Refer Note 48(B)(l) )
Recoverable from SVRS Trust (Refer Note 48(B)(1) )
Recoverable on account of GST (Refer note 53)

Subsidy receivable from EE & REM

Unbilled Revenue For Sale of Energy *

Amount Recoverable from Delhi Power Company Limited
Others

Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits

Total

22,51 43.65
0.48 0.62
5.79 -
0.58 1.28

149.32 173.91
1.09 1.08
1.82 1.74
1.01 1.06

182.58 223.34

1. Unbilled Revenue For Sale of Energy

cycle upto the Balance Sheet date.

2. For explanation on the Company credit risk management process (Refer Note 46).

Unbilled Revenue represents accrued income pertaining lo units consumed by the consumers from the last billed

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note-15 Current Tax Assets

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Advance Taxes & TDS
Income Tax Refund Receivable

Total

8.38 3.17
1.26 1.74
9.64 4.91

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note-16 Other Current Assets

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Advance other than Capital Advance:-

Pension Trust Surcharge Recoverable ! (Refer Note 54) 28.47 -
Prepaid expenses 13.59 5,73
Advances to Suppliers and Others 4.42 4.01
Recoverable for Barter Transaction 47.16 5§7.34
Total 93.64 67.08

1. Reconcilation of Pension Trust Surcharge

Particular As at March 31, 2018 | As at March 31, 2017

Collection in respect of Pension Trust Surcharge 72.03 -

tRecoverable from Future Tariff/ True up 28.47 -

| Payable (Upto March 2018) as per Tariff Order 100.50 -

nt Paid to Pension Trust 58.92 -

41.58 -

{N¥ERByable
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018
Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note 17 Regulatory Deferral Account Balances As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Tariff Adjustment Account 8,122.27 7,705.90
Deferred Tax associated with Regulatory Deferral Account Balances - -

8,122.27 7,705.90 |
Tariff Adjustment Account
Opening Balance (A} 7.705.90 7.805.10
Revenue GAP during the year
Cost
Power purchase cost 3,306.35 3,194.45
Others 1,178.79 865.75
{Includes other costs and charges in accordance with MYT Regulations, Tariff Orders
fron DERC and orders of Appellate Authorities)
Carrying Cost for the year 1,060.74 1,039.03
Less: Carrying cost recovered during the year through tariff 278.24 ' 271.23
B) 5,267.64 4,828.00
Revenue
Revenue Collected ’ 4,375.86 4,169.83
Non Tariff Income 98.29 105.89
) 4,474.15 4,275.72
Income recoverable/(reversible) from future tariff / Revenue GAP for the year
(D)=(B)-(C) 793.49 552.28
8% surcharge collected during the year
- Recovery towards opening balance* (E) 377.12 351.48
Net movement during the year (F)= (D-E) 416.37 200.80
Tariff Adjustment Account (A+F) 8,122.27 7,705.90
Related Deferred Tax on Regulatory Deferral Account Balances [Refer note 44]
Deferred Tax Associated with Regulatory Deferral Account Balances
Opening :- Deferred Tax Liabilty (2,332.71) (2,161.10)
Add:- Deferred Tax (Liabilities) During the Year (256.86) (171.61)
Less:- Recoverable from future Tariff 2,589.57 2,332.71
G - -
Balance as at the end of the year TOTAL (A+F+G) 8,122.27 7,705.90

The Company is a rate regulated entity. The Retail Supply Tariff (RST) chargeable to consumers by the Company is regulated by Delhi
Electricity Regulatery Commission (DERC ar Commission). These regulations provides for segregating of costs into controllable and
uncontrollable costs. Financial losses arising out of the under-performance with respect to the targets specified by the DERC for the
“controllable” parameters is to be borne by the Licensee's.

On May 30, 2007, the DERC nofified regulations specifying terms and conditions for determination of tariff for the period 2007 to 2011 (MYT
Regulations, 2007). Subsequently, DERC vide its order dated May 10, 2011 extended the MYT Regulations 2007, and the Control Period for
a further period of one year, i.e. upto March 31, 2012. Subsequent to the culmination of First Control Period, to March 31, 2012, DERC
issued further MYT regulations vide notification dated January 19, 2012 and specified the terms and conditions for determination of tariff for
regulated entities for Second Control Pericd (FY 2012-15) (MYT Regulations, 2011). Further DERC vide its Tariff Order dated July 13, 2012
specified the "controllable” parameters for the F.Y. 2012-13 to 2014-15. Subsequently, DERC vide its Order dated October 22, 2014
extended the MYT Regulations 2011 and the Control Period for a further period of one year up to March 31, 2016. DERC on January 31,
2017 notified the DERC (Terms &Condition for determination of Tariff) Regulations, 2017{MYT Regulations, 2017) wherein it was stated that
the performance review and adjustment for FY 2016-17 would be considered in accordance with MYT Regulation 2011. In terms of MYT
Regulations 2017, DERC on September 01, 2017 issued the DERC (Business Plan) Regulations, 2017 (Business Flan Regulations) which is
in force for a period of three years upto FY 2013-20 and provides trajectory for various controllable parameters for the aforesaid period.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

The revenue gap/surplus is represented by balance of Regulated Deferral Account which is based on principle stated in respective MYT
Regulations for that period, tariff orders and other applicable laws (except for certain disallowances**). In respect of such revenue gaps,
appropriate adjustments, have been made for the respective years in accordance with Ind AS 114 read with the Guidance Note on
Regulatory Assets issued by the ICAIl. Further for the current year self truing up has been conducted as per the principles laid down in the
Business Plan Regulations.

**DERC has trued up revenue gap for period upto March 31, 2014 vide its Tariff Order dated September 28, 2015 with certain dis-
allowances. The Company has preferred an appeal before Hon'ble Appellate Tribunal for Electricity (APTEL) against the said order,
challenging issues that are contrary to statutory regulations, unjustified and arbitrary, DERC's own findings in previous tariff orders and
regarding erronecus and/or non-implementation of previous APTEL Judgments. However, based on the legal opinion taken by the Company,
the impact of such disallowances, which are subject matter of appeal, has not been included in the computation of Regulatory Deferral
Account Balance,

On same basis and duly supported by the legal opinion,impact of similar disallowances made by DERC while truing up for FY 2014-15, 2015
16 and FY 2016-17 in the subsequent Tariff Orders dated August 31, 2017 and March 28, 2018 have not been considered in the
computation of Regulatory Deferral Account Balance for the respective years. The Company has preferred an appeal before Hon'ble APTEL
against such disallowances made vide order dated August 31, 2017 and is also in the process of filing an appeal before Hon'ble APTEL
against such disallowances made vide order dated March 28, 2018.

* DERC has allowed recovery of 8% surcharge on the applicable tariff since July 13, 2012 towards Accumulated Regulatory Defetral Account
Balance and carrying cost. DERC vide its true-up order dated July 25, 2014, September 29, 2015, August 31,2017 and March 28, 2018 has
allowed adjustment of such recovery of surcharge only towards principal amount of Regulatory Assets and has separately allowed carrying
cost in the Annual Revenue Requirement of the respective years. Accordingly, the same is being recovered from the consumers.

The percentage of existing surcharge towards recovery of accumulated Regulatory Assets is subject to review by DERC in the future tariff
orders.

The Company has also taken up the matter of timely recovery of Accumulated Regulatory assets through a writ before the Hon’ble Supreme
Court and the judgment is reserved (Refer Note 50).

Accordingly, 8% surcharge of T 377.13 Crores is recovered during the current year (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 351.48 Crores) has been adjtisted
against opening Regulatory Deferral Account Balance.

Regulalory deferral amount debit balances are subject to first pari-passu charge to secure the Company's borrowings referred in Notes as
Secured Term Loan frorn Financial Institution in the current year (Refer Note 20).

Regulatory Risk Management
DERC (Delhi Electricity Regulatory Authority) is the Regulator as per Electricity Act.

Market Risk
The Company is in the business of Supply of Electricity being an essential and life line for consumers, therefore no demand risk anticipated.
There is reguiar growth in the numbers of consumers and demand of electricity from existing and new consumers.

Regulatory Risk
The Company is operating under regulatory environment governed by DERC. Tariff is subject to Rate Regulated Activities.

Refer note 1 (d) on Company policy relating to determination of regulatory assets/regulatory liabilities.

The Company's risk for Regulatory Assets is reviewed by the Risk Management Committee supported by regulatory team under policies
approved by the Board of Directors. The team identifies, evaluates and makes plans to mitigate associated risks in close coordination with
the Company's operating units and the same is quarterly submitted to the board / audit committee for their review.

Regulatory Assets recognized in the financial statement of the company are subject to true up by DERC as per Regulation and
disallowances of past assessments are pending in courts /authorities.

DERC issued Tariff Order for FY 2017-18 on Augusf 31, 2017 which is applicable from September 01, 2017 to March 31, 2018. On March
28, 2018 DERC issued another Tariff Order for FY 2018-19 which will remain in force from April 01, 2018 and will remain in force till replaced
by a subsequent tariff order and/or is amended, reviewed or modified in accordance with the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2003 and the
Regulations made there under.

Other Risk
For explanation on the Other risk management process. (Refer Note 46).
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Note-18 Equity Share Capital

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Particutars No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
{In Crores) (¥ In Crores) {In Crores) (¥ In Crores)
Authorised
Equity Shares of T 10 each (March 31, 2017 - T 10 each) 65.00 850.00 65.00 650.00
Issued, Subscribed & fully Paid Up
Equity Shares of ¥ 10 each (March 31, 2017 - T 10 each) 55.60 556.00 55.80 556.00
Total 556.00 556.00
{a) Reconciliation of Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Particulars {In Crores) (® In Crores) {In Crores) (T In Crores)
Balance at the beginning of the year 55.60 §56.00 §5.60 656.00
Balance at the end of the year 55.60 556.00 55.60 556.00

(b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

Voting

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of 710 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitied {o one vate per

share held.
Dividend! Liquidation

The Company has not declared/distributed any dividend in the current period and previous period. In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of ail
preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

{c) Shares held by holding company or ultimate holding company and thelr subsidiarles or assoclates (w.e.f. September 30, 2016)

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of
Name of Shareholder {In Crores) | Shareholding | (In Crores) Shareholding
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Immediate and Holding Company) 28.36 51.00% 28.38 51.00%
Total 28.36 51.00% 28.36 51.00%
(d} Details of Shares Held By Shareholders Holding Morg than 5% of the fotal equity shares of the Company
As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
No. of Shares % of No. of Shares % of
Name of Shareholder {In Crores) | Shareholding | (In Crores} | Shareholding
Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Immediate and Ultimate Holding
company) 28.36 51.00% 28.36 51.00%
Delhi Power Company Limited. 27.24 49.00% 27.24 49,00%

(e) As per the records of the Company, including its register of shareholdersf members, the above sharehelding represents both legal and

beneficial ownership of shares.

(f} No class of shares have been Issued as bonus shares and shares issued for conslderation other than cash and bought back by the
company during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date.

Amounts In T Crares

Note-19 Other Equity

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Retained Earnings
Closing Balance

Total

211.85

171,36

211.85

171.36

Amounts in T Crores

Note -20 Non Gurrent Borrowings

As at March 31, 2013

As at March 31, 2017

[A) Secured
(i) Term Loan from Banks
(i) Term Loan from Others
(2) Power Finance Corporation Limited (PFC)
(b) Under Accelerated Power Development and Reforms
Programme of the Gowvt. of India (APDRP)
- From Delhi Power Company Limited {(DPCL)
(B) Unsecured
From Crest Logistics and Engineers Private Limited
(Formerly known as Sonata Investment Ltd.)
Total

994,91

4.94

999.85

458.46

7.57

10.49

476.52
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

1. Bank Wise Long Term Borrowing

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Current Current

Name of the Bank Non Current Maturities* Non Current Maturities*

Axis Bank - - 91.66 58.34
Bank Of Baroda (BOB) - - 9.20 23.00
Dena Bank - - 7.88 19.78
Federal Bank Ltd. - - 3.00 7.50
|DBI Bank - - 327.00 206.58
Karnataka Bank - - 7.38 18.50
Punjab National Bank (PNB) - - 10.00 51.41
State Bank Of Hyderabad (SBOH) - - 209 2291
State Bank Of Mysore (SBOM) - - 3.30 8.25
State Bank Of Patiala (SBOP) - - - 5.18
The South Indian Bank Ltd, {SIB) - - - 34.33
Grand Total - - 461.52 455.78

2017 7 3.06 Crores)

1. Borrowings is nefted off of Loan Processing charges amounting to ¥ 5.09 Crores year ended March 31, 2018 (Year Ended March 31,

2. Term loans (from PFC) are secured as under:-
a) Primary Security

(11} First pari-passu charge on the regulatory assets of the Company.
(iv) Second pari-passu charge on the receivable of the Company.

b) Collateral Security

(i) Pledge of 51% of ordinary equity shares of the Company.

(c) The interest rale is 12.50% to 13.50% p.a.

(i} First pari-passu charge on all moveable and immoveable properties and assets of the Company.

{lil) First pari-passu charge on present and future revenue of whatsoever nature and wherever arising,

(ii) DSRA equivalent to interest and principal dues of ensuing two quarters in the form of fixed deposit.

(d) The Company is in the process of creating charge on the securities such as morigage, hypothecation etc. required as per sanction
terms. Simultaneously, the Company is in the process of satisfaction of charge from the lenders to whom the Company has repaid the|
Jterm loans by year end. The sanction letter allows three months from the first disbursement to create the charge in favour of PFC.

(e) As per the terms of "The BSES Yamuna Distribution and Retall Supply of Electricity License (License No. 2/DIST of 2004)°, the
Company Is required to obtain permission of the DERC for creating charges for loans and other credit facilittes availed by it. As on March

Repayment terms of term loan from PFC:-

31, 2018 the required permission from DERC Is sought and is under process.

Loan Amount
. . " No. of Installment amount
Name of financial institution {Disbursed} in Installments (i Crore)
2 Crore
' - |1st Year NI|
Power Finance Corporation Limited 1,000 4 g:dd t:ia(lr T 10.00
32 Year 30.00

Repayment start date: April 15, 2019
Frequency of installment: Quarterly

3._Unsecured Loan

of ¥ 3 crore each and balance in 4th installment.

Term Loan from Banks

(i) In term of agreement dated 15th Feb 2015 Short Term Loan from Crest Lo
Investiment Itd.) has been converted into interest bearing Jong term loan. Total outstanding is due for payment in 3 half yearly installment

(a) The company has repaid the term loans from banks by the year end.
(b} Term Loans from Banks were secured by first pari-passu charge on the fixed assets, Regulatory assets, residual pari-passu charge on
the receivables and pledge of 30% shares of the Company. The company Is In the process of discharging the security as at year end.

(c) The Interest rate range s between 12.65% to 14.50 % p.a. (March 31, 2017, 12.65% - 15.00% p.a.}

gistics and Engineers Private Limited (Erstwhile Sonata

Amounts in ¥ Crores

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Note 21 Non Current Gther Financial Liabilitles
Cansumer Security Deposits 432.51 457.21
Total 432.51 457.21

Consumer Security Deposit

i} Security deposit is an amount paid by consumer at the time of applying for new connection with the company for supply of power or
subsequently in case of revision, The security deposit shall be returned o the consumer only after the termination/disconnection of the
agreement and after adjustment of outstanding dues, if any, within a period of as prescribed by DERC from the date of termination.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

ii) The amount of Consumer Security Deposit (CSD) transferred to the Company by virtue of Part 1| of Schedule E of the Transfer Scheme
was ¥ 8.00 Crores, The Transfer Scheme as well as erstwhile Delhi Vidyut Board (DVB) did not furnish the consumer wise details of the
amount transferred to it as CSD. The Company, compiled from the consumer records, the amount of security deposit as on June 30, 2002
which works out ¥ 35.38 Crores. The Company is of the opinion that its !iability towards CSD is limited to ¥ 8,00 Crores as per the
Transfer Scheme. Therefore, the liability towards refund of consumer depasits in excess of ¥ 8.00 Crores and interest thereon is not to the
account of the Company. The Company had also filed a petition during the year 2004-05 with the Delhi Electricity Regulatory Commission
(DERC) to deal with the actual amount of CSD as on date of transfer and the DERC had advised the Government of NCT of Delhi to
transfer the differential amount of deposits to the Company. The GoNCTD did not abide by the advice and hence the Company has filed a
writ petition and the case is pending before Hon'ble High Court of Dethi. In the last hearing on October 19, 2011 the matter was placed in
the category of ‘Rule’ matters and the case shall get listed in due course.

Tiiy Interest @ 6% p.a. Is provided to the consumers (upto August 31, 2017) as per nofification of DERC, dated April 18, 2007, With efiect
from September 01, 2017 the interest is provided at MCLR (Marginal Cost of Fund Based) as notified by SBI prevailing on the April 01,
2017 on consumer security deposit received from all consumers. The MCLR rate as on Aprit 01, 2017 Is @ 8 %. Accordingly, the
Comnpany has booked interest amounting ¥ 33.28 Crores (Mareh 31, 2017 - T 25.77 Crores) oh consumer security deposit of consumers.
The Company is of the view that the interest on deposit value in excess of ¥ 8 crores on date of transfer L.e. Juna 30, 2002, would be
recoverable from Delhi Power Company Ltd. (DPCL) if the Company’s contention is upheld by the Hen'ble High Court.

iv) Pursuant to certain clarification Issued by ICAI, cn treatment of Consumer Security Deposit (CSD) and in line with the company's
practice till March 31, 2018, CSD is disclosed as Non-current financial liabitity. Accordingly, comparative CSD pertaining to previaus
financtal year amounting to ¥ 457.21 crores has been reclassified to conform to the current year classification and appropriate
presentation.

Amounts In T Crores

Note -22 Non Current Provislons

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017

Provision for Employee Benefits

Opening Balance 28.91 25.05
Add: Provisich made during the year 10.16 3.88
Total 39.07 28.91

It represents Company’s liability for sick and eamed leave.

Amounts in T Crores

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Note- 23 Consumer Contribution for Capital Works
Opening Balance 181.58 170.43
Add: Received during the year 51.37 18.02
Sub Total 23292 188.45
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss 13.63 6.90
Closing balance 219.29 181.55
Amounts in ¥ Crores
As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Note- 24 Service Line Deposits
Opening Balance 151.54 143.94
Add: Received during the year 27.08 28.98
Sub Total 178.62 172.92
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss 21.96 21.38
Closing balance . 156.66 151.54

Amounts In T Crores

As at March 31, 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Note-25 Grant-In-Aid
Under Accelerated Power Development & Reforms
Programme of the Govemment of India (APDRP)
Opening Balance 5.99 6.41
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss 0.61 0.42
Closing balance 5.38 5.99
From Energy Efficiency & Renewable
Energy Management Centre (EE & RM}*
Opening Balance 1.33 1.43
Less: Transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss 0.19 0.10
Closing balance 1.14 1.33
Total 6.52 7.32

* Company has installed solar panels cf 340 KW capacity at various location of company premises, Company is eligible for subsidy of ¥
1.71 Crores {as per letter of EERREM dated February 18, 2013) out of which ¥ 0,56 Crores is yet to be received.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Amounts in X Crores

Note -26 Other Non Gurrent Liabilities As at ;’(’J‘:?h 31, | As at March 31, 2017
Consumer Contribution for Capital Works 50.37 100.19
Total 50.37 100.19

Amounts in ¥ Crores

. As at March 37,
Note -27 Current Borrowings 2018 As at March 31, 2017
Secured
From Bank
Loans Repayable on Demand
- Cash Credit 167.30 213.56
- Others (Purchase bill discounting facility) ' - 32.25
167.30 245.81

Unsecured
Loan From Related Parties
BSES Rajdhani Power Limited (Refer Note 45) 160.44 353.37

Total 327.74 599.18
(A) Secured

i) Cash credit are cash credit facilities repayable on demand, availed from consortium of bankers, are secured by:-
a) first pari-passu charge on stores & spares;

b) second pari-passu charge on receivables and regulatory assets; and

c) second pari-passu charge on fixed assets of the Company as collateral security.

ii) The Company had availed Purchase Bill discounting facility under Letter of Credit of ¥ ¥ 15.25 Crores and T 17
Crores from ICICI Bank with usance pericd of 30 days and 90 days respectively and same is secured by post
acceptance of bills by the LC issuing Bank.

d) The interest rate range for above borrowings is between 11.5% to 16.05% p.a . (March 31, 2017 - 12.25% to
16.10% p.a.) and is computed on monthly basis on the actual amount utilised.

(B) Unsecured

In term of agreement dated November 11, 2014 Advance from BSES Rajdhani Power Ltd. has been converted

into interest bearing Short term loan repayable on demand.
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018
Amounts In ¥ Crores
Note-28 Current Trade Payables As at March 31, 2018{ As at March 31, 2017
Power purchase creditors {A) 7.238.13 6,569,18
Other creditors
- Micro and small enterprises (B) 3.81 6.41
- Others (C) 63.20 49.59
(D) = (B}+(C) 67.01 56.00
Acceptances (E) 198.38 122,38
Total (A)+(D)+{E) 7,503.52 6,.747.56

2. For terms and conditions with related parties, Refer Note 45

3. For explanation on the Company credit risk management process Rafer Note 46,
4. Refer note 50 with regards to dues to Power Suppliers related parties.
5. Refer note 56 with regards to dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise (MSME).

1. Other Creditors are non interest bearing and are normally settled in normal trade cycle.

Amounts In ¥ Crores

Note-29 Other Current Financial Liabilitles

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Current Maturities of long term borrowings (Refer Note 20)
Secured Loans

{i} From Banks - 448.89
(i) From Delhi Power Company Limited - 0.95
Unsecured Loans
(i) From Crest Logistics and Engineers Private Limited 6.00 9.00
Interest accrued but not due 1.48 1.63
Interest acerued and due - 17.24
Other Payables
Payable on purchase of fixed assels 72.24 100.97
Other Creditors 15.11 18.23
Works and Earnest Money Deposits 0.31 0.36
Expenses payable 8.39 9.92
Employee benefits payable 1.31 0.65
Consumer contribution for capital works 74.35 69.85
{Including interest payable of ¥ 1.65 Crores (March 31, 2017
T1.30 Crores) }

Total 179,19 677.69

{March 31, 2017 - ¥ 6,89 Crores).

3. Refer note 21 for Consumer Security Deposit reclassification,

2. Refer note 58 with regards to dues to Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises.

1. Borrowings are netted off of Loan Processing charges for the year ended March 31, 2018 ¥ Nil crores

Amouats in T Crores

Note-30 Other Current Liabilities As at March 31, 2018| As at March 31, 2017
Advanca from consumers 99.51 80,20
Subsidy recelved in advance * 60.17 41,53
Statutory Dues 86.30 86,82
Other payables 47.80 1.50
Total 303.78 210.05

* Subsidy passed to the consumers as per the scheme announced by GONCTD.

Amounts In T Crores

Subsidy Account Statement

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Closing Subsidy received in Advance / (Recoverable)

Opening Subsidy Received in Advance 41.53 {4.51)
Subsidy passed {o consumers 44939 419.76
Subsidy Received (Including rehate on subsidy) 468.03 466,80

60.17 41.53

Amounts in T Grores

Note-31 Current Provisions As at March 31, 2018| As at March 31, 2017

Provision for employee benefits (A) 102,70 45.30

Other Provisions

Provision For legal claims

As per last Balance Sheet 4,53 6.32

Provision made during the year 1.11 {1.79)
B) 5.64 4,53

Provision For retirement of Fixed Assets

As per last Balance Shest 10,81 10.61

Provision made during the year 1.48 -
{C) 12.09 10.61

| Total {A)+(B}+{C) 120.43 50.44

Amounts in T Crores

Note-32 Current Tax Llabllitles

As at March 31, 2018

As at March 31, 2017

Provision for Tax

10.43

5386

Total

10.43

5.36
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Amounts In ¥ Crores

Note -33 Revenue From Operations

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

A) Sale of Power
!) Gross Revenue from Sale of Power
Less:Tax On Electricity
Less; Pension Trust Surcharge Recovery (Refer note 54)

Net Revenue from Sale of Power
{In the current year, Net Revenue from Sale of Power includes ¥ 376.40 crores
(March 31, 2017 - ¥ 352.94 crores) billed against 8% surcharge allowed for
recovery of opening Revenue Gap. ’
I} Bulk Sale Of Power
B) Income from Open Access

C) Other Operating Income

(i) Service Line Deposits and Development Charges

(ii) Delayed payment charges (LPSC)

(iii) Electricity Tax Collection Charges

(iv) Consumer Contribution For Capital Works and APDRP
(v} Miscellaneous Operating Income

Total (C)

Total (A)}+{B)#(C)

5,353.94 4,884.20
217.69 203.01
77.91 -
5,058.34 4,681.19
91.83 138.78
2.37 534
21.96 21.38
16.79 19.20
6.56 6.10
14.43 7.26
8.58 7.36
68.32 61.30
5,220.96 4,886.61

Gross Revenue from Sale of Power

Gross revenue from sale of power is net of rebate of ¥ NIL during the year (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 22.01 Crores).

Bulk sale of Power

Bulk sale of power is net of rebate for the year ended March 31, 2018 ¥ 0.30 crores (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 0.80 crores)

Bulk sale of power is net of barter sale ¥ 310.47 (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 75.09 cores)

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Year Ended Year Ended
Note -34 Other Income March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Interest
- Fixed Deposits with Banks 1.05 1.45
Sale of Scrap 5.92 4.40
Street Light Maintenance & Material Charges (Net) 10.24 11.15
Excess Provisions written back 0.24 3.34
Bad Debts Recovered 1.52 2.53
Profit on sale of fixed assets 1.78 0.02
Miscellaneous Income 517 5.66
Total 25.92 28.56

Street Light Maintenance and Material Charges

Income from Street Light Maintenance and Material Charges is net of direct cost of T 6.06 Crores relating to maintenance
cost {March 31, 2017 - ¥ 4.02 Crores) and ¥ 3.59 Crores relating to consumption of material (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 3.80

Crores),

Street light incentive

Street light income includes Street light incentive of ¥ 0.56 crores in the current year (March 31, 2017- ¥ 0.37 crores)
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Amounts in ¥ Crores

Year Ended Year Ended
Note -35 Cost of Power Purchased March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Purchase of Energy 2,820.01 2,725.82
Transmission charges 647.13 £43.63
Total 3,467.14 3,369.45

|Power Purchase Cost

(a) The cost of long term power purchases for the earlier years is subject to revision based on tariff orders notified by
Central Electricity Regulatory Commission {(CERC) / Delhi Electricity Regulatory Commission (DERC) for respective Power
Generators. Such revision is accounted for as and when the revised bills/demands are received from the Power
Generators.

b) Power purchase cost for the year is net of rebate of ¥ 2.30 crores (March 31, 2017 - T Nil)

¢) Banking/ Exchange Of Power

The Company takes and returns back power under the banking arrangement and accounts for the same as power
purchase (net) in the books of accounts at ¥ 4.00 per unit, being the applicable rate provided by DERC. As at March 31,
2018, the Company has to receive 117.90 Million Units (net) of energy under banking arrangement. (March 31, 2017 -
143.35 Million Units were receivable) which will be received back / returned during subsequent year/period.

d) Barter sale
Power purchase cost is net of barter sale in the current year T 310.47 crores (March 31, 2017 ¥ 75.09 ¢rores)

Amounts in T Crores

Year Ended Year Ended
Note -36 Employee Benefit Expenses March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Salaries and Wages 270.80 233.31
Contribution to Provident and other funds 70.25 18.73
Staff Welfare expense 20,13 18.28
Total 361.18 270.32

i)y Employee benefit expenses are net of T 55.90 Crores (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 30.23 Crores) being amount capitalised/
charged to capital expenditure (including impact of 7th Pay Commission amounting to ¥ 12.03 Crores (March 31, 2017
Nil)

i) Employee benefit expenses includes incremental minimum wages amounting to ¥ 0.79 crores (March 31, 2017 - ¥ Nil)
service tax ¥ 0.37 crores (March 31, 2017 -¥ 2.26 Crores) & GST ¥ 2.49 crores (March 31, 2017 - T Nil) .

iii) 7th Pay Commission Recommendations

A Wage Revision Committee was constituted by the GoNCTD vide office memorandum bearing No.
F.11(62)/2015/Powerf271 dated January 25, 20186 to examine and recommend to the Government the Pay Revision for
the employees of the Transmission & Generation Companies. Such recommendations become applicable on the
Company as per the Tripartite agreement.

The recommendations are ye! fo be accepted and notified by the GoNCTD in the Gazette. However, the Committee had
given recommendation vide order no DTL/M08/04/2017-HR(Policy) /101 dated July 28, 2017 for payment of Interim Relief
(IR) to the eligible employees at the rate of 2.57 times of Basic pay + Grade Pay w.e.f. January 01, 2016. Accordingly
Company disbursed payment of T 47.62 Crore as interim relief during the year along with arrears w.e.f. from January 01,
2016 and also provided 42.52 Crore towards Leave Salary Contribution & Pension Contribution corresponding to the
interim relief.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Disclosure under [nd AS-19 "Employee Benefits”
The Company has classified various employee benefits as under:
a) Defined contribution plans
i.y Employees Provident fund
it.) Superannuation fund
iii.) Pension and Leave Salary Contribution

Regular Employees [.e. Other than Erstwhile DVB Employees

The provident fund (including Family Pension Contribution) for ‘regular’ employees is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund
Commissioner. The Superannuation Fund contribution for 'regular employees is deposited with the Trustees of the "BSES Yamuna
Power Ltd Employees Superannuation Scheme" which is recognised by the Income Tax Autharities. Contribution to National Pension
System (NPS) for 'regular’ employees is deposited with ICIC] Securities Limited.

Erstwhile DVB Employees

Pension contribution and leave salary coniributions applicable to erstwhile DVB employees, ate paid to the DVB ETBF ~ 2002 Trust as
per FRSR rules,

The Company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year. (Refer note 36):-

S No (Particulars 201718 201617
a |Contribution to Provident Fund 259 2.04
Contribution to Employee’s Superannuation Fund 0.39 0.31
¢ [Contribution to Pension and leave Salary 56.41 14.29
Total 59.39 16.64

b Defined benefit plans

i.) Gratuity

ii.) Leave encashment
Gratuity is payable fo eligible employees as per the Company's policy and amount Is paid as per provisions of the Payment of Gratuity
Act. The Company makes contribution to Gratuity Fund (BSES YAMUNA Power Limited Employees Group Gratuity Scheme) which is
recognized by Income Tax authorities. The fund has taken a group policy with ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limted, Bajaj

Allianz, SBI Life Inurance, India First Life Insurance and Rellance Nippon Life Insurance Company Limited to meets its obligation towards
gratuity.

Eamed leave and sick leave are payable lo eligible employees who have accumulated leaves, during the employment andfor on
separation as per the Company's policy

Liability with respect to the gratuity, leave encashment and sick leave is determined based on an actuarial valuation done by an
lindependent actuary at the year end and any differential between the fund amount and the actuarial valuation is charged to Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions and are recognized
immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss as income or expense.

Principal Acturial Assumption as at Balance Sheet date

S No |Particulars March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2017

a |Discount Rate (per annum} 7.8% -7.55% 7.75%

b |Rate of increase in Compensation Levels 6% - 8% 5.5%-7%

¢ |Expected Rate of Return on Plan Asset { in case of Gratuity) 6.00% 8.00%

d |Retirement age 58-60 years

e |Mortality Table 100% of IALM (2006-08)

f |Average Withdrawal Rate Withdrawal Rate | Withdrawal Rate
a) Upto 30 Years 1% 1%
b) From 31 fo 44 Years 1% 1%
c) Above 44 Years 0% 0%

The discount rate has been assumed at 7.80% p.a. (Previous year 7.75% p.a.) which is determined by reference to market yield at the
balance sheet date on government securities. The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of
inflation, seniority, promofion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market on long term basis.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018
i} Changes In the Present Value of Obligation
$ No |Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2018 Year Ended March 31, 2017
Leave Gratuity Leave Gratuity
Encashment Funded Encashment Funded
a Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the 30.05 9.59 25.83 7.09
year
b Acquisition Adjustment - - - -
c Interest Cost 2.33 0.74 1.01 -
d Past Service Cost - 7.79 - -
e Current Service Cost 3.03 212 2.28 1.04
f Contribution by Plan Participants - - - -
9 Curtailment Cost/{Credif) - - - -
Ih Settlement Cost/(Credit) - - - -
i Benefit Paid (1.04) (0.13) (0.85) (0.21)
i Actuarial (Gains)/Loss 6.04 3.26 0.77 1.10
k Present Value of Obligation as at the End of the Year 40.41 23.38 30.05 9.59
1 Current Liability 1.63 137 1.13 0.53
m Non-current liability 38.78 22.01 28.91 9.06
ii) Changes in the Fair value of Plan Assets
S No |Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2018 Year Ended March 31, 2017
Leave Gratuity Leave Gratulty
Encashment Funded Encashment Funded
a |Present Value of Plan Asset as at the Beginning of the - 7.69 - 4.74
Year
b |Acquisition Adjustment - - - -
¢ |Expected Return on Plan Assets - 0.60 - 0.38
d |Actuarial Gainf(Loss) - (0.13) - 0.29
e |Fund transfer from others company - -
f |Employers Contribution - 1.90 - 2,50
g |Employees Contribution - - - -
h |Benefit Paid - (0.13) - (0.21)
i. |Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the End of the Year - 9.93 - 7.69
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

iii}y Percentage of Each Category of Plan Assets to Total Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the End of the Year
S No |Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2018 Year Ended March 31, 2017
Leave Gratuity Leave Gratuity
Encashment Funded Encashment Funded
a |Fund managed by Insurance company - 100% - 100%
iv}) Reconciliation of the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation and the Falr Value of Assets
S No [Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2013 Year Ended March 31, 2017
Leave Gratuity Leave Gratuity
Encashment Funded Encashment Funded
a Present Value of Funded Obligation as at the end of - 23.38 - 9.59
the year
b Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the End of the Year - 9.93 - 7.69
Funded (Asset)/Liability recognised in the Balance - 13.45 - 1.90
Sheet
d Present Value of Unfunded Obligation as at the End of 40.41 - 30.05 -
the Year
e Unfunded Net Liability Recognised in the Balance 40.41 - 30.05 -
Sheet
v) Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
S No (Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2018 Year Ended March 31, 2017
Loave Gratuity Leave Gratuity
Encashment Funded Encashment Funded
a [Current Service Cost 3.03 212 2.28 1.04
b [Past Service Cost 7.79 - -
¢ |Acquisition Adjustment - -
d [Interest Cost 233 0.74 1.01 -
e |Expected Return on Plan Assets (0.60) - 0.38
f [Curtaiiment Cost/(Credit) - -
g Settlement Cost/(Credil) - -
h [Benefit Paid - -
i [Net actuarial (Gains)/Loss 6.04 0.77 (0.29)
i (Employers Contribution - -
Total Expenses Recognised in the Statement of Profit 11.40 10.06 4.05 1.14
and Loss
Vi) Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
S No |Particulars 201718 201617
1T |Net cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain/{loss) (2.39) (1.58)
opening
2 |Actuarial gain / (loss) for the year on PBO (3.26) (1.10)
3 |Actuarial gain /(loss) for the year on Asset (0.13) 0.29
4 |Unrecognized actuarial gain/(joss) at the end of the (5.78) {2.39)
year
vii) Experience Adjustment:
S No |Particulars Year Ended March 31, 2018 Year Ended March 31, 2017
Leave Gratuity Leave Gratuity
Encashment Funded Encashment Funded
a [On Plan Liability (Gain)/ Loss 4.05 1.96 (3.15) (0.85)
b [On Plan Assels (Gain) / Loss - 0.13 - (0.29)
¢ |Expected Employer Contribution for the Next Year 6.36 3.09 5.29 1.29
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

viii) |Maturity Profile of Defind Benefit Obligation Year Ended March 31, 2018 Year Ended March 31, 2017
S.no. Years Leave Gratulty Leave Gratuity
Encashment Funded Encashment Funded

a 0 to 1 Year 1.24 1.37 0.82 0.53

b 1 to 2 Year 0.22 0.20 0.14 0.08

c 2 to 3 Year 0.22 0.21 0.19 0.09

d 3 to 4 Year 0.43 0.29 0.48 0.26

e 4 lo 5 Year 0.42 0.38 0.31 0.17

f 5 to 6 Year 0.36 0.35 0.29 0.16

g 6 Year onwards 21.27 20.569 13.94 8.30

ix})  Sensitivity Analysis of the Defined Benefit Obligation:-

S No |Particulars Leave Encashment | Gratuity
2017-18
Impact of change in discount rate
Present Value of obligaticn at the end of the year 40.41 23.38
1 |a} Impact due to increase of 0.50% (2.12) (0.68)
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% 2.30 0.7

Impact of change in Salary rate

0 Present Value of obligation at the end of the year 40.41 23.38
a) Impact due to increase of 0.50% 1.29 0.69
b) Impact due to decrease of 0.50% (1.20) (0.68)

Description of risk exposures:

Valuations are based on certain assumptions, which are dynamic in nature and vary over time. As such company is exposed to
various risks as follow-

a) Salary increases - Actual salary increase will increase the plan’s liability. Increase in salary increase rate assumption in
future vaiuations will also increase the liability.

b) Investment Risk — If plan is funded then assets liabllities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the
discount rate assumed at the last valuation date can impact the liability.

c) Discount Rate — Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

d) Monrtality & disability — Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact
the liabilities.

e} Withdrawals — Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at
subsequent valuations can impact plan's liability
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note -37 Finance Costs

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

Interest:-

iy Borrowings

ii)Consumer Security Deposit

iii) Other Interest

Other Borrowing Costs:-

iy Late Payment Surcharge (LPSC) on Power Purchase and Transmission
charges

ii) Amortisation of Financial Guarantee

iii) Others

Total

167.59 250.30
33.28 25,77
265 1.31
1,044.28 737.94
7.04 4.69
25.95 14.58
1,280.79 1,034.59

a. [nterest on borrowings related to Borrowing are net of ¥ 10.13 Crores (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 7.83 Crores) being amount

capitalised/transferred to capital work-in-progress.
b. Finance costs include GST amounting to ¥ 1.67 crores ( March 31, 2017 - ¥ Nil).

c. The LPSC is recognized by the Company based on the allocation methodology as per Power Purchase Agreements
(PPA), applicable regulations of CERC/DERC or reconciliation with Power Generators / Transmission companies,

{ Refer Note 48 (s))

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note -38 Depreciation & Amortisation Expenses

Total Depreciation (Refer Note 3 and 4)

Total

Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
169.58 117.63
169.58 117.63
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Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Year Ended Year Ended
Note -39 Other Expenses March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
1) Repairs
- Machinery 82.15 62.07
- Buildings 3.89 3.50
-Others 6.98 6.20
- Consumption (Stores and Spares) (Net of recoveries) - Refer note 34 26.26 25.95
- Stores and Spares written off 0.03 7.77
119.31 105.49
2) Administration Expenses
Vehicle Hire and Running Expenses 18.95 17.45
Travelling, Conveyance, Boarding and Lodging 2,30 228
Insurance 1.79 1.15
Rates and Taxes 4.96 13.90
Bill Collection Charges 17.74 12.53
Communication Expenses 8.12 8.40
Printing and Stationery 3.87 281
Meter Reading and Bill Disfribution Expenses 32.18 2567
Call Centre Expenses 4,29 3.92
House Keeping Charges 7.91 5.54
Security Expenses 18.45 12.66
Advertisment Expenses 0.87 0.21
Legal Claims 1.65 0.49
Professional Consultancy Charges 16.33 13.33
DSS Expenses 5.47 4.34
Administration Expenses (SLA)} 3549 31.64
Corporate Social Responsibilities * 0.82 0.71
Remuneration to Auditors * 0.45 0.55
Directors' Sitting Fees 0.20 0.13
Bank Charges 1.24 D.98
Miscellaneous Expenses 3.59 3.68
184.68 162.37
3) Others
Provisions For:
- Retirement of Fixed Assets 1.48 -
- Non Moving Inventory 8.25 -
- Doubtful Debts * 9.70 4.17
19.43 4.17
Amount Written Off :
Bad Debts Written Off 6.44 -
Less: Provision Made in Earlier Years {6.44) -
Fixed Asset Written Off - 5.37
Less: Provision made in Earlier Years - (5.37}
Fixed Assets Retired/ Loss on Sale 7.11 8.14
711 9.14
Total 330.53 281.18

Effect due to increase in Minimum Wage

1. Other expenses includes expenses related to manpower based contract which has an incremental effect of minimum
wages, for year under consideration amounting amounting to ¥ 26.98 crores (March 2017 - ¥ Nil). This amount does not

includes the incremental impact of work based contracts.

2. Other expenses are inclusive of GST amounting to ¥ 30.34 (March 31, 2017 - Nil) (excluding GST on stores and
spares consumed), and service tax amounting ¥ 7.24 Crores, (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 22.47 Crores).
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BSES YAMUNA POCWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

3.Corporate Social Responsibilities

The board of directors approved CSR Policy of the Company at its meeting held on 25 September 2014. In accordance
with the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was required to spend ¥ 2.31 Crores (3 0.79
Crores for FY 15-16, ¥ 0,88 Crores for FY 16-17 and ¥ 0.84 Crores for FY 17-18) till FY 2017-18 on prescribed CSR
activities. Amount related to Corporate Social Responsibility as per Section 135 of the Act, read with Schedule VI thereof
upto FY 17-18 is ¥ 2.76 Crores (T 1.23 Crores In FY 15-18, ¥ 0.71 Crores in FY 16-17 and ¥ 0.82 Crores in FY 17-18 ).
Further, the Company has already committed T 0.49 Crores, which will be incurred during the next financial year.

Amounts in ¥ Crores
Cumulative Amount Incurred till FY 2017-18

Particulars Amount Paid Yet to be Paid

(i) Constructionfacquisition of any asset - -

(i) On purposes other than (i) above 2.76 -
Total 2.76 -

Amounts in ¥ Crores

4. Remuneration To Auditors {Including Service Tax/ GST)

Audit Fees & Limited Review Fees 0.22 0.28

Tax Audit Fees 0.05 0.07

Certification Work 0.16 0.18

Out of Pocket Expenses 0.02 0.02
Total 0.45 0.55

5. Provision for Doubtful Debts

Provision for doubtful debts (cumulative) as on March 31, 2018 includes ¥ 21.77 Crores (March 31, 2017 -¥ 14.19 Crores)
against dues from MCD which has been provided in the books of accounts based on provisional reconciliation and
pending final setflement with them. Expected credit loss from simplified approach were applied for other customers as per
Ind AS 108,
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note -40 Net movement in Regulatory Deferral Account Balances and
related deferred tax balances

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

Regulatory deferral account balances (Refer Note 17) 789.87 551.40
Less: Recovered during the year (Refer Note 17) (377.13) (351.48)
Total 412.74 199.92
Deffered Tax relating to net movements in Regulatory Assets 142.84 69.19
Effect of Reversal of Temporary Differences during Tax Holiday Period & Tax
Rate Difference 114.02 102.42
Less:- Recoverable from Future Tariff determination {256.86) (171.61)
Total 412.74 199.92
Amounts in ¥ Crores
Year Ended Year Ended
Note -41 Current Tax March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income Tax for the Current Year 10.09 £.34
Income Tax for the Earlier Years - 2.65
Total 10.09 7.99
Amounts in ¥ Crores
Year Ended Year Ended
Note 42 [ncome Tax Effect on OCI March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income Tax Effect on QOCI 0.05 0.01
Total 0.05 0.01

Amounts in ¥ Crores

Note -43 Earnings per Equity Share

Year Ended
March 31, 2018

Year Ended
March 31, 2017

| Profit/ (Loss} for Earnings Per Share
Profit for the year {After tax)
Profit/ {Loss) for the year (After tax) (Before Net movement
in Regulatory Deferral Account balances)

Il No. of Equity Shares (In Crores)
Opening
Closing
Weighted Average No. Of Equity Shares

Il Earning per share
Eaming Per Share Basic (¥)
Eaming Per Share Diluted (I}
Eamings per share Basic (Before Net movement in Regulatory
Deferral Account balance)
Eamings per share Diluted (Before Net movement in Regulatory
Defetral Account balance)
Face Value Of Equity Shares (T)

40.31
(372.43)
55.60

55.60
55.60

0.73
0.73
(6.70)

(6.70)
10.00

33.04
(165.98)
55.60

55.60
55.60

0.61
0.61
(2.99)

(2.99)
10.00
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to FInanclal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Note 44: Income tax expense

{a) Income tax expense

Amount In ¥ Crores

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

(a) Income tax expense
Cumrent tax

Current tax on profits for the year 10.14 5.34
Adjustments for current tax of prior year - 2.65
Total current tax expense (A) 10.14 7.99
Deferred tax

Decrease/(increase) in deferred tax assets (437.459) (43.29)
(Decrease)/fincrease in deferred tax liabilities 229.38 232.38
Total deferred tax expensel/ (benefit) (208.07) 189.09
Less: Liability/income Payable/Recoverable from future tariff 208.07 {189.08)
Net deferred tax expense/(benefit) (B) - -
Income tax expense (A)+(B) 10.14 7.99

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s tax rate:

Amount In ¥ Crores

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Profit as per Ind AS frem continuing operations before income tax expense (A) 50.63 41.93
Income tax rate applicable (B} 34.61% 34.61%
Income tax expense (A"B) (A)"(B) 17.52 14.51

Tax effects of the items that are not deductable (taxable) while calculating taxable income :

Tax Effect of Permanent timing differences 0.38 0.25
Movement in tax losses {net of recoverable from future tariff) (17.91) (14.76)
Current tax on profit for year 10.14 5.34
Prior Year Tax Adjustment - 2.65
Total Tax Expense 10.14 7.99

{b) Deferred tax balances
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Amount in T Crores

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Deferred tax liability on account of:

Depreciation difference 311.34 334.71
Regulatory Deferral Account Balances 2588.57 2332.M
Loan processing costs 1.76 3.44
Measurement of Financial Guarantee - 2.44
Deferred tax asset on account of:

Provision for Doubtful Debts 48,25 47.22
Provision for Retirement of Assels 4.19 3.67
Provision for Non-moving inventory 2.85 -
Provision for Leave Encashment 13.99 10.40
Unabsorbed losses (including unabsorbed depreciation) 2748.63 2319.17
Net deferred tax liability/{Asset} 84.76 292.84
Less: (Recoverable}/Payable from future tariff {84.76) (292.84)

(c) Movement in deferred tax balances:

Amount in ¥ Crores

Depreciation | Regulatory | Unabsorbed losses Others Total
difference Deferral {including (d) {a)+{b)-(c)-(d)
(a) Account unabsorbed
Balances depreciation)
{b) {c)
At March 31, 2016 271.20 2,161.10 2,279.32 49.22 103.76
{Charged)/credited:
- to profit or loss 63.51 171.61 39.85 6.19 189.08
At March 31, 2017 334.71 2,332.71 2,319.17 55.41 292.84
{Charged)/credited:
- to profit or loss (23.37) 256.86 429.46 12.10 (208.07)
As at March 31, 2018 311.34 2,589.57 2,748.63 §7.51 84.76

Note: In line with the requirements of Ind AS 114, Regulatory Deferral Accounts, the entity presents the resulting deferred tax asset (liability) and the related
movement in that deferred tax asset (liability) with the related regulatory deferral account balances and movements in those balances, instead of within that

presented above in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Taxes. Refer note 17 for disclosures as per Ind AS 114,
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Note-45 : Related party transactions

Amount in ¥ Crores

Key Management Personnel and Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

]

Parent Company

Reliance Infrastructure Limited (Rinfra Ltd)

if)

Company having Substantia! interest

Delhi Power Company Limited

iif)

Fellow Subsidiary Companies & Assaociates

BSES Rajdhani Power Limited(BRPL)

Sasan Power Limited (SPL)

Reliance IDC Limited (R IDC L)

Reliance General Insurance Company Limited
(RGICL)

iv)

Post Employment Benefit Plans

BSES Yamuna Power Limited Employees Group
Gratuity Assurance Scheme

BSES Yamuna Power Limited Employees
Superannuation Scheme

Key Management Personnel

Name Category Period
Shri Lalit Jalan - Chairpersen 2017-18
2016-17
Shri Rana Ranijit Rai 201718
201617
Shri Gopal K Saxena 2017-18
2016-17
Shri Virendra Singh Verma
2017-18
(w.e.f. July 20, 2017) . . .
St Amal Sinha Non - executive director 201718
{upta April 24, 2017) 2016-17
Shri Sanjeev Singh
(uplo August 04, 2016) 201617
Shri Prem Prakash
(upto August 04, 2016) 201617
Shri 8. M. Varma
(uplo August 04, 2016) 2016-17
Shrii Ajit Keshav Ranade 2017-18
2016-17
Shri Anjan] Kumar Sharma 2017-18
- 2016-17
Ms, Ryna Zaiwalla Karani ndependent Director 2017-18
2016-17,
Shri Surinder Singh Kohli 2017-18
2016-17
Shri Alok Kumar Roy - |
(w.ef. April 24, 2017 upta July 20, 2017) Additional Director 2017-18
Shri Prem R Kumar Chief Executive Officer 2017-18
2016-17

|a| Kez management personnel compensation

March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Short - term employee benefits 1.13 0.84
Post - employment benefits 0.12 0.08
Long - term employee benefits 0.58 0.45
Direcler's sitting fees 0.20 0.13
Total compensaticn 2.03 1.49
b) Transactions with related parties
The following transactions occurred with related parties:
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Statement of profit and loss heads
Income:
Sale of Power
- BSES Rajdhani Power Limited (BRPL) 1.68 17.32
Expenses:
Purchase of Power (Including open access charges & Late payment surcharge)
- BSES Rajdhani Power Limited (BRPL} 0.29 3.36
- Sasan Power Limited (SPL) 272.82 283.13
Receiving of services
- Reliance IDC Limited (R IDC L) 1.67 1.49
- Reliance General Insurance Ltd (RGIL) 1.27 1.93
- Relinace Infrastructure Limited (R Infra}* - -
Interest Expenses
- BSES Rajdhani Power Limited (BRPL) 57.16 5217
Contribgt{qd}b-PostERipiyment Benefit Plans

,-/-'{; ted Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme 13.45 1.90

#-Yamuna Power Y{% & loyees Superannuation Scheme 0.39 0.31
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

¢) Loans toffrom related parties

Amount In ¥ Crores

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2017

Lean

- BSES Rajdhani Power Limiled (BRPL) - 192.92 {23.25)
d) Balance sheet heads (Closing balances): March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Payahle

- BSES Raldhani Power Limited (BRPL) (Borrowings) 160.44 353.37
Fellow Subsidiary Companies & Associates

- Sasan Power Limited {SPL) 70.28 111.00
- Reliance IDC Limited (R IDC L} - 0.02
Payable to Trust

- BSES Yamuna Power Limited Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme 13.45 1.90
Receivable

- Reliance General Insurance Company Limited (RGICL) 0.00 1147
- Delhi Power Company Limited (DPCL) 1.08 1.09

(e) Terms and conditions

Note 1 : The above disclosure does not include transactions with / as public utility service providers, viz. electricity, telecommunication, in the

normal course of business.

Terms & conditions
i) Alt outstanding balances are unsecured and repayable/recoverable on demand

i) The sales to and purchases from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and seltlement occurs In cash. There have been no guarantees
provided or recelved for any related party receivables or payables. For the year ended March 31, 2018, the Company has not recarded any
impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties (March 31, 2017: ¥ Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial

year through examining the financial pasition of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

iii} For terms and conditions related to loan taken from BRPL (Refer note 27).
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2013

Note no 46:- FInanclal Risk Management

The Company's business activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, namely liguidity risk, market risks and credit risk. The Company's
senior management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The
Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk
management policies. The key risks and mitigating aclions are also placed befote the Audit Committee of the Company. The Company's
risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market
conditions and the Company's activities.

The Risk Management Committee of the Company is supported by the Finance team and experts of respective business divisions that,
provides assurance that the Company's financial risk activities are govemed by appropriate poficies and procedures and that financial risks
are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Company's palicies and risk objectives. The aclivities are designed to:
-protect the Company's financial results and positien from financial risks

-maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising retumns; and

-protect the Company's financial investments, while maximising returns,

The Treasury department provides funding for the Company's operations. In addition to guidelines and exposure limits, a system of
authorities and extensive independent reporting covers all major areas of treasury's activity.

This note explains the sources of risk which the enlity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk in the financial statements.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement Management
Cash and cash equivalents, trade Diversification  of
Credit Risk receivables, derivative financial|Aging analysis bank deposits,
instrumnents, financial assets measured at|Credit rating credit limits and
amortised cost. letters of credit
Monitoring of]
Liquidity Risk I?orfgwangs. Trade Payable and cther Rolling cash flow gommlﬂed credit
liabilities forecasts lines and
borrowing facilities
Market risk — interest rate Long-term borrowings at variable rates Sensitivity analysis |Interest rate swaps

The Company's financial risk management is carried out by the treasury depariment {Cempany treasury).lt identifies, evaluates financial
risks in close cooperalion with the Company's operating units,covering interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments
and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.

(A) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of default on its obligation by the counter pary resulting in financial loss. Credit risk arises from cash and cash
equivalents, investments carried at amortized cost or fair value through profit & loss and deposits with banks and financial institutions, asr
well as credit exposures to tradefnan-trade customers including outstanding receivables.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financia! Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

(i) Credit risk management
Credit risk is managed at Company level depending on the framework surrounding credit risk management.

The concentration of credit risk is limited since the customer base is large and widely dispursed and secured with security deposit. For
banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks, institutions are accepted.

The maximum exposure to the credt risk at the reporting date is primarily from trade receivable. The Company follows simplified approach
|method wherein it recognises impairement loss allowance based on lifetime Expected Credit Loss (ECL) at reporting date.

Trade Receivable are written off when there is no reasonable expeclation of recovery after disconnection and past due ,as per policy of the
Company and debtor falling to engage in a repayment plan with the Company. However, the Company continues 1o engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.

For trade receivable (other than sireet light unmetered connections) the Company uses the provision matrix methed under simplified
approach. The provision malrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of these trade receivable and is
adjusted for forward locking estimates. At every reporting date, the historically cbserved default rates are updated and changes in the
farward looking estimates are analysed.

For street light unmetered connection, in addition to recognising impairment loss provision under lifetime expected credit loss model,
specific provision is also made for cases under dispute with the consumer.

For recognition of impairment loss on loans and other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increase significantly, 12 month ECL is used o
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increase significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent pericd, credit quality of}
the instrument impraves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12 month ECL.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

Provision for expected credit losses
As at March 31, 2018
Expected credit loss for trade receivables of metered connections

Amounts in ¥ Crores

: 0-90 days past 90 - 180 days 180 - 270 days 270 - 360 days 360 -450 days DMore than 450
Aging Not due due past due past due past due past due days past due Total
Gross carrying amount 92.79 52.47 16.30 12.06 6.38 4.39 87.01 271.40
Expected loss rate 3.43% 5.58% 24.34% 42.65% 62.48% 79.94% 100.00% 40.43%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance
provision) 3.18 2.93 3.7 5.14 3.98 3.51 87.01 109.72
Carrying amount of trade receivables
{net of impairment) 89.61 49.54 12.33 6.92 2.40 0.88 - 161.68
As at March 31, 2017
Expected credit loss for trade receivables of metered connections
. 0-90 days past 90 - 180 days 180 - 270 days 270 - 360 days 360 -450 days MNore than 450
Aging Not due due past due past due past due past due days past due Total
Gross carrying amount 85.51 33.88 16.86 12.60 6.96 5.66 97.44 258.88
Expected loss rate 3.44% 5.70% 26.72% 47.94% 66.98% 83.34% 100.00% 47.22%
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance
provision) 2.94 1.93 4.51 6.04 4.66 4.72 97.44 122.24
Carrying amount of trade receivables
{net of impairment) 82.57 31.92 12.35 6.56 2.30 0.94 - 136.64
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Amounts In ¥ Crores

{lil) Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables

Reconciliation of loss allowance

Loss allowance on April 1, 2016 130.70
Changes in loss allowance 5.74
Loss allowance on March 31, 2017 136.44
Changes in loss allowance 2.98
Loss allowance on March 31, 2018 139.42

Significant estimates and judgements

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions for financial assets disciosed above are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Campany uses judgement in making
these assumptions and selecting the Inputs to the Impairment calculation, based on the Company's past histary, existing market conditions as well as forward locking estimates at the
end of each reporting year.

The company do not anticipate any material credit risk for Joans and other financial assets.

(B) Liquidity risk

Prudent Equidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit
facilities to meet cbligations when due and to close out market positions, Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, Company treasury maintains flexibility in funding by
maintaining availability under committed credit lines,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrewing facilities below) and cash and cash eguivalents on the basis of expected
cash flows. The Company's liquidity management policy involves projecting cash flows and considering the level of liquid assets necessary to meet these, monitoring balance sheet,
liquidity ratios against internal and extemnal regulatory requirements and maintaining debt financing plans.

(i) Financing arrangements
The company had access to the fellewing undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting year:

March 21, 2018 | March 31, 2017

Floating rate
Term loans . - -
Expiring within cne year (cash credit) 15 2
Expiring beyond one year (bank loans) - -

Subject to the continuance of satisfactory credit ratings, the bank loan facilities may be drawn at any time in INR.

(Ii) Maturities of financial liabifitles

* The tables below analyse the Company's financial liabilities into relevant maturity based on their contractual maturities for all non-derivatives financial liabilities

The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows carrying balance with interest not due. Balances due within 12 months equal their camrying balances as
the impact of discounting is not significant.

Contractual maturities of financial * more than 1

liabilities Carrying Value within 1 year year Total
March 31, 2018

Non-derivatives

Borrowings 1327.59 327.74 999.85 1,327.59
Trade payables T7475.72 7.475.72 - T AT5.72
Retention payable 27.80 27.80 - 27.80
Security deposits 432.51 432,51 - 432.51
Greditors for capital expenditure 72.24 72.24 - 72.24
Other finance liabilities 106.85 106.95 - 106.85
Total non-derivative liabilities 9.442.81 8,442,96 999.85 9,442.81

{C) Market risk

{i) Forelgn currency risk

(b} Sensitivity

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. During March 31, 2018 and
March 31, 2017, the Company's bomowings at variable rate were primarily dominated in INR. In view of reduction in Bank Rate and improvement in Credit Rating, Company is not
exposed 1o any material interest Rate Risk due to borrowing at Variable Rate .
The Company's borrowings are carried at amertised cost.

In view insignificant expasure to forex , Sensivity Analysls on Foreign Exchange Risk is not required.

The expostre of the company’s borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting year are as follows:

March 31, 2018] March 31, 2017
Variable rate borrowings 1,327.59 1,553.41
Fixed rate borrowings
Total borrowings 1,327,598 1,553.41

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the company's functional currency (INR).
The Company cperates in a business that have insignificant exposure to foreign exchanges/ foreign currency transactions.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

{b) Sensitivity Amounts in ¥ Crores

Prefit or [oss is sensitive to higherflower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates,

Impact on profit after tax
March 31, 2018) March 31, 2017
Interest rates - increase by 50 basis points (50 bps)* {3.35) (7.67)
Interest rates — decrease by 50 basis points (50 bps)* 3.35 7.67

*Holding alf other variables constamt

{iii) Price risk

(a) Exposure

The Company’s does not have any investment in equity . Therefore there is no Price risk to the Company on Financial intruments, Tariff of the Company is regulated by DERC. Refer
note no 17. About the Price risk management on account of determination of tariff.

(iv) Capital Risk Management
The Company considers the following components of Balance Sheet to manage Capital :

1 Total equity- retainad profit ,general reserve and cther reserve,share capital

2. Working Capital

The Company manages its capital so as to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to optimise returns to our shareholders. The capital structure of the Company is
based on management’s judgement of the appropriate balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic and day-to-day needs. We consider the amount of capital in preportion to
risk and manage the capital structure in Bght of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underiying assets.

The Company’s aim to translate profitable growth to superior cash generation through efficient capital management.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a stable and strong capital structure with a focus on total equity 5o as to maintain investor, ereditor, and market confidence and to sustain future
development and growth of its business.

The Company’s focus is on keeping strong total equity base to ensure independence, security, as well as a high financial flexibility for potential future borrowings, if reguired, without
limpacting the risk profile of the group. The Company will take appropriate steps in order fo maintain, or it necessary adjust, its capital structure,

AY
The management monitors the return on capital as well as the level of dividends to shareholders.

A
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

(a) Fair Value Measurements

Amounts in T Crores

31 March 2018

31 March 2017

Particulars Level
FVTPL | Amortised FVTPL Amortised
Financial assets
Restricted Deposits With Banks 3 93.75 - 13.94
Non current loans 3 0.05 - 0.05
Other Non Current Financial Assets 3 1.38 2.70
Trade Receivables 3 216.92 223.57
Cash and cash equivalents 3 92.41 23.73
Bank balances other than cash and cash 3 10.48 2.70
equivalents
Current loans 3 0.80 0.86
Cther current financial assets 3 182.58 223.34
Financial Gurantee Received 2 - 7.04
- 598.37 7.04 490.90
Financial liabilities
Non current borrowings 999.85 476.52
Non current other financial liabilities 432.51 457.21
Current borrowings 327.74 599.18
Trade payables 3 7.503.52 - 6,747.56
Current Maturities of Long Term Borrowings 3 7.48 477.71
Employee related liabilities 3 1.31 - 0.67
Payable for expenses 3 8.39 - 9.92
Others 3 87.66 - 119.56
Consumer Confribution for Capital Works 3 74.35 69.84
- 9,442.81 - 8,958.17

Notes:

a. Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities with short term maturities is considered as approximate to
respective carrying amount due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

b. Fair Value of non current financial assets and liabilites has not been disclosed as there is no significant
differences between the carrying value and fair value.

Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: The tair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined using valuation
technigques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument Is included in

level 2.

Level 3; If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market dala, the instrument is included
in level 3. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities included in Level 3 is determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable current

market fransactions and dealer quotes of similar instruments.

There are no transfers between any levels during the year.
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Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

47 Commitment
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for is ¥ 46.54 crores (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 107.28 crores).

The Company had entered into Leng Term Power Purchase Agreaments with various Power Generators in accordance with Capacity allocated to the Company by the
Ministry of Power!/Gout. of NCTD for respective plants.

48 Contingent Llabilitics
A) Bank Guarantee outstanding as at March 31, 2018 ¥ 3.75 crores (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 1.33 crores).

B) Claims not acknowledged as debts and other major matters under litigation

Amount in T Crores

a) Partleulars As at As at
March 31, 2018 |March 31, 2017
i |Legal Cases related to Consumers & others 0.99 8.78
ii |Legal Cases related to Employees 1.22 1.22
ifi__|Claim by DPCL on account of events relating to erstwhile DV8 perlod 32,69 34.41

1) Legal cases related to consumers and others;

Consumers In the ordinary course of business, challenge the conviction orders passed by the special courts seeking selting aside of orders and recovery of payment
already made by them. Also In case of billing disputes, the consumers allege excess recovery and seek refund cf the same. Apart from the above, the recovery cases are
also filed against the company by the vendors, third parties efc.

li} Legal cases related to employees:
The aggrieved employees have filed cases before the various forums en aceount of denial of Time Bound Promotion scale, delay in promotion, setting aslde of disciplinary
proceedings with consequential benefits, etc

111) Suit filed by DPCL Vs BYPL (Sult no.1052/2013)

A recovery suit has been filed by DPCL In 2013 against the Company before the Hon'ble High Court of Delhl for recavery of T 34.41 Crores along with interest @ 18% p.a.
This suit has been filed on the ground that the amounts were paid by DPCL directly on account of payments to the contractors, works, supplies, services, past employees
and to the third party during the period of 2002-2006 for liabilities asising from events prior to July 01, 2002 (DVE period). It also includes the adjustments made by the
Company for discharging such DVB [iabilities (prior to July 01, 2002) from the amounts payable to DPCL (for revenue collected from consumers towards power supplied
during the CvB perlod) The matter at present is in before the Registrar of Delhl High Court for admission and denial of documents and is scheduled for hearing on July 08,
2018.

b) The Company has recelved claim from Delfhi Transco Limited of ¥ 1.62 Crores (March 31, 2017 - ¥ 1.62 Crores) mainly on account of events relating to erstwhile DVB
period.The same ras baen disputed by the Coempany, and pending dispute/raconcifiation the same has not been provided in the books.

c) The Company had received TDS assessment orders for Financial Years 2007-08, 2008-09 and 2009-10 where in a lotal demand of 2 2.24 crores (P.Y. ¥ 2.24 crores) was
raised primarily on account of interest ws 201 (1A) of the Income Tax Act, 1861 for nan / late deduction of TDS on power transmission charges w's 194J. The Company
had contested this demand and has appealed against the sald TDS assessment orders before the CIT{A). Appeal for F.Y. 2008-09 & 2009-10 have been decided by the
CIT{A} In favor of bf the Company, whereby It was hled that TDS w's 194/ |5 no! applicable on payment of transmission, wheeling, open access charges etc. Appeal for FY
2007-08 against the demand of T 1.00 Cr In this regards is, siill pending.

During pendencies of aforesald appeals, the Company had deposiied entire dmend of T 2.24 Crares (P. Y. T 2.24 Crores) under protest, Further, the Company had taken
the decision in November 2009 o deduct and depesit TDS on power transmission charges from the FY 2009-10 onwards under protest, The Company is confident that
appeal for FY 2007-08 will be decided in line with orders passed for FY's 2008-09 & 2009-10 and the entire demand will be reduced to Nil. Accordingly the Company has
not provided for any liability in this regard in the books of accounts. Further, the Company Is following up with the Income Tax Authorities for refund / adjusiment of the
amount paid agal]wst the demands for FY's 2008-09 & 2009-10.

In the meanwhile, the ncome Tax Department appealed against the order of CIT(A) appeal before ITAT for the FY's 2008-09 and 2008-10 contesting deciston of CIT(A).
These appeals of; the department has beein dismissed by [TAT and decided in favor of the Company.

The issue of apphcabihty of section 194J on power transmission / wheeling charges have recently been set at rest by the Hon'ble Supreme Court, In a SLP filed by the
Income Tax Department against a Defhl High Court decision in case no ITA No. 341 / 2015 pertaining to Delhi Transco Limited was dismissed. The High Gourt had held
that the provisions of seclion 184J ara not applicable on power transmission/ wheeling charges.

d) Income Tax assessmen! for the AY 2010-11 s 143{3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 was concluded and a demand of ¥ 334.02 crores was raised which was subsequently
rectified to T 298.55 crores. The Company had filed an appeal before CIT(A) against the sald order, which has been decided In favor of the Company and the demand has
been reduced to NIL. However, the Income Tax Department as well as company has filed an appeal before ITAT against the said order of CIT(A) which is pending for
disposal. The Company had deposited T 40 Crores against the demand pursuant to the orders of the Hon'ble Delhl High Court and the Supreme Court In the related writ
petition and SLP fi led by the Company in this regard. The demand so pald as above has been refunded to the Company with nterest. Accordingly, no provision has been
made in the books in this regard.

@) Income Tax assessment for the AY 2011-12 was concluded u/s 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 whereby a demand of ¥ 58,58 crores was raised under the normal

_ provisions of the ..T. Act. which was subsequently rectified to T 13,58 crores. The Company had filed an appeal against said order before CIT(A) which has been declded

vide order dated Feburary 28, 2018 In which substantia! relief has been allowed and the demand has been reduced to NIL. Moreover, the amount of T 0.50 crores paid by
the company aga!ns! the dermand is now refundable to it. Company's appeal is pending before ITAT for the remalning issues.

f) Income tax assessment for AY 2012-13 was concluded ws 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. In the assessment order various additions were made and a demand of
?14.81 Crores was ralsed. The Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A) agalnst the sald order. [n addition, the Company has also filed an application for stay of the
demand on the grounds that the issues In respect of which the demand has been raised are covered in favour of the Company In it's appeals for earlier years. Meanwhile,
the Company has received the CIT(A) order for A.Y. 2011-12, in which a loss of T 1,293.77 Crore has been determined. Considering the carry forward loss of A,Y. 2011-12,
the taxable income for the A.Y. 2012-13 has been revised to Nil after considering brought forward losses and the relaled demand under normal provision of the Act has
been reduced to NIl. However demand of ¥ 0.18 crore has been raised under MAT. The issue relating to additions made under MAT provisions are covered in favour of the
Company by the C1T (A) erder's of earller years, Accordingly, no provision has been made in the books of accounts against such demand.

@) The Income Tax Assessment of the Company for A.Y. 2013-14 was concluded u/s 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. In the assessment order, various additions were
made and a demand of ¥ 77.23 Crores was raised, The Company's appeal before CIT(A)}, against the said order, has been partially allowed, The Company has filed an
appeal before ITAT against the order of CIT(A) on the issues which have been decided against the company. Meanwhite, the Company has received CIT(A) order for A.Y.
2011-12, in which a loss of ¥ 1,293.77 Crore has been determined. Considering the carry forward loss of A.Y. 2011-12, the taxable income for the A.Y. 2013-14 has been
revised to Nil after considering brought forward losses and the related demand under normal provision of the Act has been reduced to Nil. However demand of T 0.39 crore
has been raised under MAT. The issue relating to additions made under MAT provisions are covered in favour of the Company by the CIT (A} order’s of earlier years.
Accordingly, ne provision has been made in the books of accounts against such demand.

h) Income Tax Assessment of the Company s 147 (re-opened assessment) of the Income Tax Act., 1961 for the AY 2007-08 was concluded in which a demand of T 44,59
Crores was raised. However, the sald demand has subsequently been reclified to NIL after allowing relief for brought forward losses of earller years. Accordingly, the

Cornpany has not made the books against the sald demand. During the current year, the Cempany's appeal before CIT(A) against the reassessment order
was decided agalnst any§reXqmpany has filed an appeal before ITAT against the CIT (A} order which is yet fo be heard.
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Notes to Flnanclal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

i) Income Tax assessment for AY. 2014-15 was concluded 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, [n the assessment crder passed w's 143(3), various additions were made
and a demand of T 63.48 Crores has been raised. The Company has filed an appeal before CIT{A) against the said order. The Company has aiso filed an application for
stay of the demand on the ground that the demand will be reduced to Nil after considering the Issues which are decided In favour of the Company in it's appeals for earlier
years. Meanwhile, the Company has recelved the CIT(A) order for A.Y, 2011-12, In which a loss of ¥ 1,293.77 Crore has been determined. Considering the carry forward
loss of AY. 2011-12, the taxable income for the A.Y. 2014-15 has been revised ‘o Nil after considering brought forward losses and the related demand under normal
provision of the Act has been reduced 1o Nil. However demand of T 0.50 crore has been raised under MAT. The Issue relating to additions made under MAT provisions are
covered in favour of the Company by the CIT(A) order’s of earlier years. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the books of accounts agalnst such demand.

j) Income Tax Assessment of the Company u/s 147 (re-opened assessment) of the Income Tax Act., 1961 for the AY 200810 has been concluded in which a demand of T
0.40 Crores has been raised, The Company has filed an appeal before CIT(A) against the said order. The Company has also filed an apglication for stay of demand on the
ground that Ihe the issue cn which the addition has been made is covered in faveur of the Company In it's appeals for earlier years and after considering the such issues,
the demand will be reduced to Nil. Accordingly, no provision has been made In the books of accouns against such demand.

k) Income Tax assessment for AY. 2015-16 is concluded w's 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961. In the assessment order passed w's 143(3), various additions have been
made and a demand of ¥ 34.94 Crores has been raised. The Company has filed an appeal before GIT(A) against the sald order. The Company is alse in the process of
filing an application for stay of the demand on the ground that the demand will be reduced to Nil after considering the issues which are decided in favour of the Company in
it's appeals for earlier years. Meanwhile, the Company has received the CIT(A) order fer A.Y. 2011-12, in which a loss of ¥ 1,293.77 Crare has been determined.
Considering the camy forward loss of A.Y. 2011-12, the taxable income for the A,Y, 2015-16 has been revised to Nil after consldering brought forward losses and the
related demand under normal provision of the Act has been reduced to Nil. However demand of ¥ 0,53 crore has been raised under MAT, The |ssue relating to additions
made under MAT provisions are covered in favour of the Company by the CIT (A) crder's of earlier years. Accordingly, no provision has been made [n the books of
accounts against such demand.

I} The Company had in December-2003, anncunced a Special Voluntary Retiremenl Scheme (SVRS). Tha Company had taken the stand that terminal benefit to SVRS
retirees was the responsibility of DVB Employees Terminal Benefits Fund - 2002 Trust (DVB ETBF —~ 2002 or the PensionTrust) and the amount was not payable by the
company. The DVB ETBF — 2002 Trust had centended that terminal benefits to the SVRS optees did not fall in its purview as the employees had not attained the age of
superannuation. |
Far resolution of the issue through the process of law, the Company had filed a writ pelition before the Hon'ble Delhi High Courl. The Hon'ble Court has proneunced its
Judgement on this issue on July D2, 2007 whereby it has provided two eptions to the Discoms for paying terminal benefits and residual pension to the Trust :

1yTerminal benefits o the SVRS oplees o be paid by Discoms which shall be reimbursed to Discoms by the Trust without interest on normal retirement £ death (whichever
is earlier) of such SVRS optees. In addition, the Discoms shall pay the Retiral Pension to SVRS optees lill their respective dates of normal retirement, after which the Trust
shall commence payment to such optees, OR;

I} The Trusl to pay the terminal benefits of the SVRS oplees on reimbursement by Discoms of "Addilional Contribution’ required on account of premature payout by the
Trust which shall be computed by an Arbitral Tribunal. The liability to pay residual pension I.e. monthly pension shall be beme by the company.

The Artitral Tribunal shall be comprised of a nominee of the Institute of Actuaries Mumbal, a nominee from DISCOM and a nominee from GoNCTD & Pension Trust.
Institvle of Actuaries and DISCOMS have appointed their respective nominees while GolNCTD & Penslon Trust have not appointed their nominee and have filed their
respective Appeals before the Divison Bench of the High Court of Dethi,

The Company has opted for option (Il) above, which require determination of additional conteibution o be funded by DISCOM as determined by the Arbitral Tribunal.
However, the Company in order to mitigate the financial hardships being faced hy the SVRS oplees, pending determination and actuarial valuation and without prejudice
1o thelir rights, contentions and claims, opted to pay the terminal benefits to the SVRS optees and the same was taken on record by the High Court in its order dated
January 25, 2008, As such, the Company has paid leave encashment, gratully, and commuled pension amounting to ¥ 60.53 Crores (Including interest of T 14.90 Crores)
{Previous Yeas ¥ 60.53 Crores, including interest of ¥ 14.50 Crores.) vide Court direction dated January 25, 2008 and shown it as advance recoverable from the Trust. The
company has adjusted ¥ 15.08 Crores from leave salary and pension contribution payable to the Trust, agalnst amount recoverable in respect of the SVRS Optees who
have expired cor attained the age of superannuation till March 31, 2010, Furthe, amount of Rs. 21.78 crores has been adjusted against amount recoverable in respect of
SVRS oplees who have expired or attained the age of superannuation till March 31, 2018.

Both GeNCTD & Pension Trust have challenged the dismissal of their respective appeals by filing Special Leave Petitions no CC No. 11594/2016 and 18280/2016 before
the Hor'ble Suprerne Ceurt of India. Beth the SLPs came for hearing before the Hon'ble Supreme Court on January 02, 2017, wherein both the SLPs have been
admitled. Thereafter matter was listed with Registrar on various dates, last date being March 12, 2018 when the Registrar has directed the matter to be listed before the
Caourt. These SLPs will now come up for hearing on their tum, as and when listed by the Court.

m}) During the F.Y. 2011-12, the Company had received a claim from Reliance Infrastructure Limited for T 95.87 Crores against Sales Tax dues (including interest upto March
31, 2018) (Provious Year March 31, 2017 - ¥ $2.21 Crores) on purchases made by it from Reliance Infrastructure Limited during the F.Y. 2003-04 against Sales Tax
exemption certificates Issued under Rule 11 (X11) of the Delhl Sales Tax Rules. The Sales Tax Authorities have disputed the exemption certificates issued by cur Company
and raised a demand for the Sales Tax along-with interest on Reliance Infrastructure Limited, who has appealed against the related assessment order and the matler Is
subjudice befcre the Hon'ble High Court of Delhi . The Company Is of the view that it is entitled to the Sales Tax exempticn under Rule 11 (XIi) of the Delhi Sales Tax
Rules, 1975 as it had stepped Into the shoes of erstwhile DVB, which was entitled to Issue the sald exemption certificates. The sald matter is subjudiced. No development
in this case during the year.

n) Dethi Electricity Regulatory Commission (DERC) vide iis letter dated December 3, 2009 directed all the DISCOMs to refund the unspent consumer contribution with
interest @ 12% per annum from the date of completion of work as per Electrical Inspector's Certificate (EIC). The Licensee, aggrieved by the direction, submitted review
Petition before DERC requesting to Implement the princlpte of refunding the unspent consumer contribution prospectively as DERC itself has utilised the unspent consumer
contribution as a means of finance in its varlous Tarilf Orders.

DERC in its Inferim Order dated August 23, 2012 directed the DISCOMs to refund the unutilised consumer conlribution scheme-wise frorm F.Y. 2012-13 onwards to the
consumers along with interest from the date of issuance of EIC. However, DERC vide its order dated March 11, 2014 observed that consumer contribution was considered
as a means of finance by the Commissicn for the capital expenditure schemes In various tariff Orders. DERGC sfill maintained its direction to refund the unspent consumer
contribution with interest @ 12% per annum from the date of completion of work as per EIC. The Licensee, aggrieved by the Order, submitted an appeal before Appellate
Tribunal for Electricity {ATE). The ATE, vide its Judgment dated February 23, 2015 remanded the matter o DERC giving liberty to the DISCOMs to fumnish the accounts
showing that tha excess amount of consumers contribution has been duly considered in the ARRs from F.Y. 2002-03 onwards in reducing the retall supply tariffs.
Meanwhile, DERC in its order dated December 23, 2015 has directed the Company to provide within the next two months the details of balance of consumer contribution In
each case and from which date it has to be refunded. The Company has duly submitted such details to the DERC. DERC vide letter dated January 12, 2017 directed
DISCOMs {without allowing impact in ARR) to refund consumer confribution otherwise face penalty u/s-142 of EA 2003. The Company challenged the aforesald letter of
DERC before ATE, In the judgement pronounced by APTEL on May 15, 2017 it has made it clear that the DERC should take into account the submissions made by the
DISCOMS contending that since the entire amounis received by the DISCOMS against Consumer Contributions for Capital Works upto FY 2006-07 had been considered
as Means of Finance by the DERC and therefore, the Commission cannot ask for the unutilised ameounts to be refunded to the consumers without recomputing the ARR for
those years. The matter has accordingly been remanded back to DERC and the order dated January 12, 2017 issued by the DERC asking the DISCOMS to make refund of
all unutilised amounts within 15 days or face action w's 142 of the Eleclricity Act 2003 has been set aside.

Therefore, pending the final order of DERC, no interest has been provided in the books for deposit recelved i)l 31st March 2012, The Company Is refunding consumer
deposits for deposits received after March 31, 2012 with interest.
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Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

o) Under the Delhi Electricity Regulatory Commission (DERC), {Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO) and Renewsble Energy Cerlificate (REC) Framework
Implementation} Regulations, 2012, the Company is an Obligated Entity which is mandated to purchase from renewable sources a defined annual minimum guantum to
meet the RPO targets w.ef. F.Y. 2012-13,

During the F.Y. 2017-18, DERC has imposed a penalty of T 15,78 Crores in its Tariff Order dated 31.08.2017 for the period of FY 2012-13 fo FY 2015-16. Therefore, the
Company has considered the impact of 2 15.79 Crores while computing the revenus gap for F.Y.2017-18,

For the F.Y. 2016-17, DERC in its tariff order dated March 28, 2018 has observed that the matter of RPO penalty is pending adjudication before the commission and the
quantum of penalty would be considered based on the outcome of the petition. As regards, F.Y, 2017-18 the RPO targets have been specified In the Business Plan
Regulation, 2017. Hence any consequential impact due to shortfall on account of non fulfiliment of the same has been considered while computing the revenue gap for
F.Y.2017-18.

p) North Delhi Municipal Corporation {"NDMGC") by @ communication dated June 19, 2015 has ralsed an aggregate demand of T 27.32 Crores on BYPL for the period starting
from the year 2007 lill 2015 purportedly on account of leave way charges and also towards security deposit equivalent to 3 months' charges at the current rate.

NDMC vide circular dated August 28, 2015 has also sought to impose way leave charges on al! service providers of services like Telecom, Waler Supply etc. including
BYPL who are using the land / Property of NDMC whether underground or overhead to lay their cables including other elecirical installation. NDMG has asked for payment
of usage charges of ¥ 75,162/- per running meter up 1o 1 mir, width, per annum.

BYPL has informed NDMG that the imposition of license fees and way leave charges is misconceived and against the mandate of the transfer scheme. The matter was
alsa raised with the Regulater and the GoNCTD. BYPL has also sent letter dated 21,10.2015 to DERC with a copy to the Secretary (Power), GoNCTD in this regard.No
fresh demand /reiteraticn of earlier demand of leave way charges & rent on transformer is received, NDMC has reduced demand of ¥ 75,162/- per §q. m per year o ¥ 684
per $q. m in Aug 2016.- Matter has been again taken up by the Company with DERC, Civie agencies and GONCTD as the reduced levy is also unjustifiable, as we pay
Road resteration charges to NDMC.

+ GONCTD has taken up the matter with civic agencles, last meeting being in Dec 2016 and asked them to reconsider the demand as same Is not justifiable and shall
result in burden on consumers.

Further, EDMC also, vide its letter dated December 31, 2015 has raised a demand on BYPL of ¥ 133 Crore for perfod starting from year 1994 till 2002 and ¥ 89 Crores for
peried starting frem year 2003 till December 31, 2015 aggregating to a total of ¥ 223 Crores approximately on account of rent for transformers installed on ils land and
subsequentiy has also Issued Speaking Order dated February 19, 2016 In this regard. BYPL fited a Writ petition no.4676/2016 before Hon'ble High Court of Dethi where
seeking direction for quashing the Impugned Speaking Order dated February 19, 2016 and two letters both dated December 31, 2015 and on dated May 19, 2016 Hon'ble
court issted Notice 1o the Respondents and stayed demand raised by EDMC. Now, on last date of hearing i.e Apsil 02, 2018 Hon'ble Court adjourned the matter to May
07, 2018 with direction to DPCL fer filing reply to the application filed by BYPL for impleadment of DPCL as a party.

q) The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India, in it's order dated August 10, 2015, had stayed the operation and implementation of the Bombay High Court order dated December
15, 2014 which had dismissed the petition filed by the Bombay Bar Association of challenging the applicability of the Service Tax cn Lawyer's fees. In view of the sald
decision of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, the Company decided not to deposit service tax on lawyer's fees w.e.f. October, 2015 till the matter is decided by the Hon'ble
Supreme Court. In ¢ase the malter were to be ultimately decided in favour of Revenue by the Hon'ble Supreme Cour, the amount of such service tax tiat would be
payable under reverse charge on lawyer's fees upto June 30, 2017 would be ¥ 2.67 crares (March 31, 2017 - T 2,56 crores) plus interest, if any. W.e.f. July 01, 2017 GST
has been implemented and Company Is paying GST on above services under GST reverse charge mechanism.

r) In addition, the company is subject to legal proceedings and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The company's management does not
reasonably expect that these legal actions, when ullimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect ¢n the company’s results of operations or
financial condition.

Based on the inferpretations of the provisicns of the relevant statutes involved, the Company is of the view that the demands referred above are likely to be deleted or
substantially reduced and penally walved off by appellate authorities at higher levels and accordingly no further provision is required,

s) Late Payment Surcharge on Power Purchase Overdue
Due to financial conditions of the Company it could not service duss of various Power Generators / Transmission companies en time. Due to delays In payment, these
companies are entitle to levy Late Payment Surcharge (LPSC) on the Company, The LPSC is recognized by the Company based cn the allocation methodology as per
Power Purchase Agreements (PPA), applicable regulations of CERC/DERC or reconciliation with Power Generators/ Transmission companies. There are differences in
LPSC recognized in the books of account and amount claimed by scme of the generators / fransmitters as per the reconciliation statements. These differences, amounting
T 319.92 Crores, are primarily on account of interpretation of applicable regulations of CERC/DERC or terms of PPA’s where there are no defined payment allocation
methcdolegy.

49 Legal Cases by the Company
The Company has a process of enforcement and booking cases of power theft to reduce AT&C losses and improve eperational efficiency parameters. In pursuance of
same and powers conferred under The Electricity Act, 2003, Company files cases in various legal forums for the recovery of dues from defaulters. The Company is hopeful
of favourable outcame of such cases. However, the amount likely to be realized on settlement of such cases is currently not ascertainable. The Company does not expect
any adverse Impact on the financial position as a consequence of these legal cases. The Company has taken insurance policy for electrification cases, Any order of the
Court directing Company to pay compensation is reimbursable by the Insurance Company.

50 NTPC and Other Generators Duas

The Company has received a notice from NTPC Limited on February 01, 2014 for regulation (suspension) of power supply due to delay In power purchase payments. The
Company has filed a pelition in the Hon'ble Supreme Court praying for keeping the regulation notice in abeyance, giving suitable direction to DERC to provide cost
reflective tariff and to give a roedmap for liquidation of the accumulated Regulatory Assets. In the Interim Order dated March 26, 2014 & May 05, 2014, the Hon'ble
Supreme Court had directed the Company to pay its current dues (w.e.l. January 01, 2014) by May 31, 2014 failing which the generating / transmission Companies may
regutate supply. On July 03, 2014, the court took note that Company paid 100% payment of its current dues. All contentions and disputes were kept open to be considered
later. Further, direction was made to pay the recurring ameunt as per earlier orders dated March 26, 2014 & May 06, 2014. In the meantime, an application has been filed
before Hon'ble Supreme Court seeking modification of aforesaid orders so as to allow the Company o pay 70% of the current dues. All arguments were concluded on
February 18 & 19, 2015, Judgment is reserved.

Delhi Power Utilities had filed contempt case in January 2015 against Senlar Offigials of the Company alleging non compliance of the Supreme Courl regarding payment
off the dues, No notice has been Issued so far , however, on an interim application filed by them praying fer payment of outstanding dues, notice was issued in December
2015, Thereafter, the matter was listed on few occaslons but was simply adjourned. However, on May 12, 2016, the Court directed the the Company lo pay 70 % of the
current dues till further orders, New contempt petitions have been filed by Delhl power utilities in Nov 2016 alleging non compliance of order dated May 12, 2016. No
netice has been Issued so far , Thereafter, the matter was [isted on various dates, last hearing being on March 19, 2018. Next date of hearing is May 02, 2018.
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51 CAG Audit
Pursuant to the letter dated January 07, 2044 by Deparlment of Power {GoMGTD), The Comptroller Auditor General (CAG) of India has commenced audil of all the three
electricity distribution companles of Delhl w.e.f. January 27, 2014, The Company has filed a writ petition in the Hon'ble High Court praying for staying the said audit,
however, the said prayer has been declined by the Court. The Company has filed an appeal before the Division Bench of High Court against the said Crder. Both writ
petition and appeal have been tagged together along with PIL {Public Interest Litigation) filed by United Resident Welfare Association (URWA) on the same matter. All
arguments were concluded en March 04, 2015,

In Aug / Sept, 2015, the company filed interim applications in aforesald appeals requesting for directions to CAG 1o not share the draft audIt repaort with any third party and
the sama canret be cited or acted upon in any manner whatsoever.CAG counsel submitted that they will take no action on the basis of the same.Further, consolidated draft
report of all discoms was fumnished by CAG to BSES discoms pursuant to direction of the Court.

Anather set of applications were filed sesking breakup of alleged loss ete, as stated in draft audit report and stay on Exit Conference. The samae were listed on Octeber 01,
2015, The Court did not grant any stay on holding of Exit conference and statad that the replies be submitted on whatever material is available to BSES discoms and seek
additional detalls in the Exit conference and apprise the coust on the next date of hearing i.e. October 15, 2015.

On October 15, 2015, the Company apprised the court that 1,412 pages have been provided for the first time at the Exit Conference held on QOctober 14, 2015 and time is
required to respond for the same.CAG counsel staled that this information has been shared in the past during the Audit process and therefore it is not a new information.
The Court, after hearing the parties, recorded the submissicn and sald that similar matter in the case of Tata Power Delhl Distribution Limited (TPDDL ) is coming up on
Qctober 30, 2015, These applications along with the matter would be listed along with Wit on October 30, 2015,

The Court has also granted the Eme to the Company till Octaber 30, 2015 to respond to the documents provided at the Exit Conference, if it so desires.
The matter was listed for October 30, 2015 and Hon'ble Court has pronounced Its judgement wherein Hon'ble court has concluded with "directions to set aside all actions
taken pursuant to the January 07, 2014 order and all acts undertaken in pursuance thereof are infructuous”.

CAG, GONCTD and URWA have filed an appeal against the Hon'ble court judgement and the maller was lisled on January 18, 2016, wherein notices were issued. BSES
discoms have submitted their replies. Matter was last listed on July 25, 2016 and court directed the parties to complete the pleadings. The case was slaled to be heared on
October 19, 2016, but it did not figure in the cause list, hence, did not get listed on that date. Last hearing was cn December 07, 2016, when parties were given further four
weeks to complete the pleadings . Matter was listed on varicus occasions in Feb/ March 2017, last hearing being on March 09,2017. When Court has reserved its order an
the issue whether it would like to hear the matter or transfer it {o the constituticnal bench where matter between GONCTD powers vis —a vis LG powers Is pending. On
July 03, 2017 the court has held that it shall hear the matter. Next date of hearing Is not yet fixed.

52 Service taxf GST on Street Light Malntenace
The Company raises bills for Street Light Maintenance on the Municipal Corporation of Defhi (MCD) alang-with the applicable service tax (till June 30, 2017) and GST
thereafter (in line with provisions of notification Nos, 24/2017-Central Tax (Rate)} (CT(R)) dated September 21, 2017 to 2/2018- CT (R} dated January 25, 2018). However,
MCD is not adhering to its statutory obligation to bear the Service Tax/GST and has not been paying the Service Tax/GST component of the bilfs, Aggrieved by the actions
of the MCD, the Company had filed a writ petition before the Delhi High Court en August 24, 2009 seeking directicns against MCD for recovery of the service tax dues. The
total amount of Service Tax claimed in the writ petition for the period June 16, 2005 to June 30, 2009 was ¥ 3.24 crores which is still pending adjudication and the total
amoun! of Service Tax/GST recoverable from MCD In this regard has increased fo T 12.30 crores as on March 31, 2018 (March 31, 2017 T 10.35 creres} MCD has since
been split into South Delhi Municipal Corporation (SDMC), North Dethi Municipal Corporation (NDMC) & East Delhl Municlpal Cerporation (EDMC) based an their area of
furctionality in the ditferent parts of Delhl, The three Municipal Corporations {MCDs) have been impleaded in the Writ Petition. Cn the last date of hearing in the matter, i.e.
on April 03, 2018, the Gourt had directed the MCDs fo file their counter-affidavits within 3 days. North MCD has served its Counter Affidavli to the Writ Petition. South MCD
and East MCD have not served any Response/Counter Affidavit to the Wit Petiticn. The Company is In the process of fillng Rejoinder to the Counter Affidavit filed by the
Nerth MCD, The matter is now directed to be listed before the Hon'ble High Court on September 20, 2018.

S

(%)

Applicabllity of GST on Distribution Utilitles Circular No 34/08/2018

Recently Govt. of India, Department of revenue , New Delh has issued a circular bearing no. 34/8/2018 dated March 01, 2018 clarifying therein that some of the activities
carried out by discoms are chargeable to GST which is contrary to the spirit of law as the transmission and distribution of electricity has all along been a non taxable
service, Therefore the company along wilh other Discoms proposes to file a writ petition before the Dethi High Cout to stop the aperation of this circutar and challenge the
levy of GST on such services which are necessary adjunct of Distribution of electricity.

54 Pension Trust Surcharge
As per DERC directives in the Tariff order dated August 31, 2017, there Is change in the mechanism for the contribution made by the Company to DVB ETBF Pension
Trust 2002, Earlier, the contribution was made through DTL as Transmission cosl. Effective September 1, 2017, as per new mechanism, the Company Is required to
contribute a predetermined amount to DVB ETBF Pension Trusl 2002 on monthly basis and the sama Is recoverable through the custormers by way of 3.70% surcharge. As
per DERC directive, any under recovery/over recovery from customers shall be trued up by the DERC at the time of true up for FY 2017-18, therefore, no impact on profit
of loss for the perlod is envisaged by the Company.

55 Segment Reporting
The Company Is engaged in the business of distribution and supply of electricity in the specified area in Delhi. Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the
business as one aperating Segment only, Therefore, Segmental disclousre as required by Ind AS 108 "Segment Reporting” is not applicable.

Thers is no individual cutstomer contributing more than 10 % of revenue. The company operates in cerlain areas of Delhi as per licence issued by DERC and hold assets at
one geograghical area i.e. Delhi. The Company does not derive revenue from foreign countries on account of distribution business. The Company does not hold any non
current asset in foreign country

£6 DIsclosure under the Micro, Small and Medlum Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) :

Amount In ¥ Crores

S No Partlculars 201718 2016-17

Principal amount along with the Inlerest due thereon, at the end of the 3.81 6.4
a accounting year

Amount of interest paid as specified in MSMED Act, 2005 along with Nil Nil
b [the amount pald to the suppliers beyond the appointed date

Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making Nil Ni}
¢ |Payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during

the year) but without adding the interest, specified in this Act

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of Nil Nil
d the

year
The amount of further interest rematning due and payable even In the Nil Nil

e |succeeding year, until such date when the interest dues, specified in
this Act are actually paid
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BSES Yamuna Power limited
Notes to Financial Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

57 Category Wise Details of Revenue Billed and Revenue Collected (Billed and Unbilled) During the Year 2017-18 and 2016-17

(A} Net Metering Units grossed up in sales & collection:
1. According to Delhi Eleciricity Regulatory Commission {Net Metering for Renewable Energy) Regulations, 2014, during any biling cycle, the distribution licensee shall raise invoice for the net electricity consumption, as per applicable tariff, only after adjusting f netting off
2. Electriciy Tax on this sales amount is already included in the respective category being recoverable from the consumer. :
(B) The collection figure of T 5410,05 Crores include the following:
1. Z 16,67 Crores & £0.12 Crores collected towards Late Payment Surcharge on account of Normal cases & Enforcement cases respectively and T 217.51 Crores & 1.15 Crores collected towards Electricity Duty on account of normal cases & Enforcemenl cases

2.7 375.15 Crores & 2 1.98 Crores collected towards RA surcharge for recovery of past accumulated deficit on account of Normal Cases & Enforcement cases respectively, and ¥ 71.99 Crores & % 0.04 Crores towards Pension trust Surcharge approved by DERC vide

its tariff order dated August 31, 2017.

{C) The collection figures mentioned above exclude the following:
1. Collection made on account of bulk sale of power i.e, rading energy.
2. Collection from consumers on aceount of non- energy collection.

(D) Collection against temporary connections is included in respective category of consumer.
(E) Total energy billed of 6503,87 MUs mentioned above includes 20.23 MUs billed against enforcement obtained on 2 ABR (twice of average billing rate) basis as per Hon’ble APTEL's judgement rendered in Appeal 61 & 62 of 2012,

(A) Financial Year 20M7-18 REVENUE BILLED
Total Revenue Totat
Energy Sales | Fixed Charges ;::;g:s OtherCharges |  PPAC RA Surcharge SUZ‘f:me %’i::;" Subsidy | Electricity Tax P‘*S“:'r'::a:g"f‘ (@iisc) ;;cl. Cotlectio
S. No |Particulars MU YCrs ICrs TCrs TCrs TCrs T Crs T Crs TCrs T Crs T Crs TCrs T Crs

1 |Domestic 3,756.37 138.38 1,931.09 (4.57) (0.00) 165.38 - - 449.38 104.56 31.58 2.366,42 | 1,905.43
2 |Non- Domestic 1,881.57 248,98 1,676.25 (1.51) 0.00 154.97 22.62 (11.41) 0.02 88,89 33.71 2,212.68 | 2,220.21
3 |Industrizl 310.26 27.01 253.18 017 0.00 22.66 6.23 (2.87) - 13.36 5,30 325.04 323.35
4 |Agrculture 0.25 0.01 0.07 0.00 - 0.01 - - - 0.00 0,00 0.09 0.09
5 |Mushroom Cullivation 0.01 0,00 0.1 0.00 - 0.00 - - - 0.00 0.00 0.01 0.01
6 |Public Lighting 118,72 - 88.33 (0,00} 0.00 7.07 - - - 0.99 1.73 98.12 102.32
7 |DJB-Delhi Jal Board 147.04 9.84 114.41 0.03 0.00 9,89 2.64 (3.20) - 6.18 2.29 142.08 140.82
8 |DIAL-Dethi Intermational Airport Limited - - - - - - - - - - - - -
9 |Railway Traction{ Other than DMRC} - - - - - - - - - - - - -
10 [DMRC-Delhi Metro Rail Corporation 206.51 5.00 125,63 {3.20) - 10,38 4.56 (2.24) - 0.01 2.3 142.45 133.88
11 [Temporary 4522 3.91 46.00 0.23 0,00 3.98 0.29 {0.16) - 2.50 0.M 57.66 -
12 |Advertisement & Hoardings 0.58 0.19 0.70 (0.00) - 0.07 - - - 0.04 0.02 1.02 1.00
13 |Self Consumption 1590 0.01) (0.13) 0,01 o.M 0.01 0.24 {0.13) - 0.00 {0.00) (0.00) -
14 |Enforcement 20.23 - 29.16 - - 1.58 - - - 115 0.04 32.33 32.45
15 {Net Metering Units (Grossed up) 0.85 - 0.38 - - - - - - - - 0.39
16 |[E Vehicle 0.368 - 0.20 - - 0.02 - - - 001 0.01 0.23 0.30

Sub Total 6,503.87 433.29 4,265.29 {8.64) 0.01 IT6.42 36.58 {20.01) 449.40 217.69 77.90 5378.53 | 4,859.86

Add {Deemed Collection):

SD Interest 33.28

Subsidy (OTSS)

Subsidy 449,40

Rebate to Consumers for Monthly Billing

SD Re! 67.11

Amtaunt credited to Net Metering Consumers 0.01

Amount of Sales Grossed up for Net Melering consumers 0.39

Grand Total 5,378,563 | 5410.05

Note:
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BSES Yamuna Power limited
Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

{A) Net Metering Units grossed up in sales & collection;

(B) Financlal Year 2016-17 REVENUE BILLED
Total Revenue -
Energy Sales | Fixed Charges g::r'::s OtherCharges | PPAC RA Surcharge Surpc‘:fa"rge %’:::;" Subsidy | Electricity Tax | (Billed) Excl. | Ot Covection
Subsidy
S. No [Particulars MU X Crs TCrs X Crs ICrs ICrs T Crs I Crs TCrs ICrs TCrs T Crs

1 __IDomestic 3,517.08 115.92 1,808.82 {0.40) 0.72 153.99 - - 419.57 97.37 2,176.42 1,766.32

2 |Non- Domestic 1,771.66 226.68 __1,680.06 0.04 1.75 145.31 22.69 (11.36) (0.00) 83.21 2,048.39 2077.04

3 |industrial 276.51 21.75 226.37 0.10 0.45 20.09 8.1 {2.83) - 11.87 283.81 285.17
4 _|Agriculiure 0.22 0.01 0.08 0.00 0.00 0.01 - - 0,00 0.00 0.08 0.08

5 _ |Mushroom Cultivation 0.02 (0.00) 0.01 {0.00} {0.00) 0.00 - - - 0.00 0.01 0.01

8 |Public Lighting 145.34 - 108.75 0,14 0.36 B.69 - - - 1.09 119.03 119.14

7__|DJB-Delhi Jal Board 141.98 9.26 110.02 {0.03} 0,26 9.51 2.43 {2.79) - 593 134.59 135.23

8 __|DIAL-Delhi Intemational Airport Limited -

9 |Railway Tracton{ Other than DMRC) -
10__|DMRC-Delhi Metro Rail Corporation 176.58 435 107.73 274 0.24 8.90 3.61 {1.73) - - 120.34 120.07
11 |Temporary 45.90 313 46.62 0.14 0.05 3.99 0.33 {0.17) - 2.52 56.60 0.00
12 _|Advertisement & Hoardings 0.68 0.21 0.85 (0.00) 0.00 .09 - - - 0.05 1.20 1.20
13 [Se¥ Consumption 15.56 0.01 (0.03) (0.15) 0.00 0.00 0.19 (0.11) 0.00 (0,00) (0.08)

14 _|Enforcement 2291 - 33.01 - - 2.37 - - - 0,988 36.37 36.38

15 |MNet Metering Units (Grossed up) 0.37 - 0.17 - - - - - - - 0,17
Sub Total 5,114.82 381.33 4,022.44 (2.80) 3.83 352,94 35.25 (19.00) 419,57 203,01 4,976.91 4,540.64
Add (Deemed Collection);
SD Interest 25.77
Subsidy (OTSS) 019
Subsid! 419.57
Rebate to Consumers for Monthly Billing 17.08
SD Adjustment 847
Amount credited to Net Metering Consumers 0.01
Amount of Sales Grossed up for Nel Metering ¢consumers 0.17
Grand Total 4,976.91 5,009.91
Note:

1. According to Delhi Electricity Regulatory Commission (Net Metering for Renewable Energy) Regulations, 2014, during any billing cycle, the distributicn licensee shall raise invaice for the net electricity consumption, as per applicable tariff, only after adjusting
/ netting off of the units injected during the menth & unadjusted energy credits of the previous billing cycle(s). Therefore units such adjusted at the time of billing during the financial year has been grossed up o amive at the total sales made through BYPL's

distribution system.

2. Electriciy Tax on this sales amount is already included in the respective category being recoverable from the consumer,
(B) The collection figure of T 5009.91 Crores include the following:

1. 2 19.19 Crores & T 0.01 Crores coffected towards Late Payment Surcharge on account of Nommal cases & Enforcement cases respectively and ¥ 202.56 Crores &7 0.98 Crores collected towards Electricity Duty on account of normal cases & Enforcement

cases respectively.

2.7 349,11 Crores & T 2.37 Crores collected towards RA surcharge for recovery of past accurnulated deficit on account of Normal Cases & Enforcement cases respectively,

{C) The collection figures mentioned above exclude the following:
1. Collection made on account of bulk sate of power i.e. trading energy.
2, Collection from consumers on account of non- energy collection.

(D) Rebate to consumers for monthly billing ameunting to T 17.08 Crores pertalning to FY 2016-17 posted in consumer accounts in Mar 2017.

(E) Collection against temporary connections is Included in respective category of consumer.

{F) Total energy billed of 6114,82 MUs mentioned above includes 22.91 MUs billed against enfarcement obtained on 2 ABR (twice of average billing rate) basis as per Hon'ble APTEL's judgement rendered in Appeal 61 & 62 of 2012.
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BSES Yamuna Power limited
Notes to Financlal Statements for the Year Ended March 31, 2018

58 Quantitative Information :

{In_Kwh milllen Units)

ik

S.No. |Particulars 2017-18 201617

Purchase of Energy {Including

a |Ul Trading Units), net of barter 792937 it 7941.42 #

b |Sale of Enargy i##
Retail Sale
-Billed Linits 8504 i} 6115 ##
-Untilled Units {Net) (Refer =27 77
Tablo Below)
«Bulk Sals excluding Barter 300,82 # 579.57 #

¥ Provisional data subject to finalisation by SLDC including net metering.

## Billed units include 20.23 milien theft units (March 31, 2017 - 22.%1 million theft units)

14 Salo of Enerqy (i.e. Billed Units) includes self generated Sotar Power of 2801732 units, (March 31, 2017 - 253960 units.}

The Year

{In Kwh miitlon Units)
§ No |Particulars 2017-18 201617
a Closing Unbilled Units 200 227
b Opening Unbilled Units 227 304
Unbilled Units {Net) For -7 17

Notes 1 to 58 form an Integral part of the Financlal Statements.
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED
Statement Of Profit And Loss For The Period Ended March 31, 2018

Year ended Year ended
Particulars Netes Q4, FY17-18 Mar 31, 2018 Q4, FY 16-17 Mar 31, 2017
{Zin Crores) (Xin Crores) (T in Crores) (Tin Crores)
1. Revenue From Operations 33 945.01 5,220.96 870.62 4,886.61
11. Other Income 34 6.74 25.92 5.23 28.55
Ill. Total tncome (| +I) 951,75 5,246.88 875.85 4,915.16
IV. Expenses
Cost of Power Purchased 35 740.70 3,467.14 608.65 3,369.45
Employee Benefit Expense 36 79.51 361.18 72.69 270.32
Finance Costs 37 428.90 1,280.79 234.04 1,034.59
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 38 44,17 169.58 29.63 117.63
Other Expenses 39 102.11 330.53 69.62 281.17
Total Expenses (IV) 1,395.39 5,609.22 1,014.63 5,073.17
V. Profitf {Loss) before Rate Regulated Activities and Tax (Ill-]V) (443.64) (362.34) (138.78) {158.01)
V1. Net movement in Regulatory deferral account bala.nces and related 480,51 412.74 160,98 199.92
deferred tax 40
VII. Profit/ (loss) Before Tax (V4+VI) 36,87 50,40 31.19 41.91
VIiil. Tax Expense
{1) Current Tax 4] 747 10.09 141 7.99
(2) Deferred Tax
Provision for the year (387.56) (464.93) 61.28 17.47
Less:- Adjustable in Future Tariff 387.56 464,93 {61.28) (17.47)
IX. Profit/ (loss) for the year (VII-VII) 29,40 40.31 29.78 33.92
X. Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)
ltems that will not be reclassified to Profit & Loss
Re-measurement of Defined Benefit Plan Gains/ Loss (1.93) (3.39) 2.48 (0.82)
Net movement in Regulatory Deferral Account balances related to items
recognised in OC] 2.06 3.62 (2.65) 0.88
Income Tax relating to above items 42 0.03 0.05 {0.03) 0.01
Other Comprehensive Income 0.10 0.18 {0.13) 0.05
Xl. Total Comprehensive Income for the Year { IX+ X) 29.51 40.49 29.66 33.97

The above Statement of Profit and Loss shouid be read in conjunction with the accompanying note nos. 1 to 58.

Place : New Delhi
Date: April 21, 2018

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Lalit Jalan
Chairman
(DIN 00270338 )

i Gopal K Sa;te'r;a
Director
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Director
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CFO
{ICAI MN - 420131)
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Director
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Director
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the perlod ended 31 March 2018

Amounts In T Crores

, Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Note -33 Revenue From Operations {2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 (2016-17) | Mar31,2017
A} SALE OF POWER
1) Gross Revenue from Sale of Power 977.45 5,353.94 B17.32 4,884.20
Less:Tax On Electricity 37.80 217.69 33.43 203.01
Less:Surcharge for Pension Fund 32.42 77.91 - -
Net Revenue from Sale of Power 207.23 5,058.34 783.88 4,681.19
I[) Bulk Sale Qf Power 20.62 91.83 68,15 138.78
B) Open Access Incame 0.50 2.37 3,00 5.34
C)OTHER OPE ING INCOME
i) Service Line Depasits 5.67 21.96 5.55 21.38
ii) Delayed payment charges (LPSC) 348 16.79 5.45 19.20
iii) Electricity Tax Cellection Charges 1.24 6.56 1.08 6.10
iv) Consumer Centribution For Capital Works 4.12 14.43 1.80 7.26
v) Miscellaneous cperating income 2.15 B.58 1.63 7.36
Total 945.01 5,220.96 870.62 4,886.61
Amounts in T Crores
Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Nole -34 Other Incoma (2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 (2016-17) | Mar31,2017
Interest on
- Fixed Deposits with Banks 0.20 1.05 037 1.45
Sale of Scrap 1.48 5.92 0.01 4.40
Street Light Maintenance and Material Charges 2.50 10.24 2.82 11.15
Excess Provisions written back 0.15 D.24 (0.00) 334
Bad Debts Recovered 0.39 1.62 037 2.63
Profit on sale of fixed assets 0.00 1.78 0.02 0.02
Miscellaneous Income 2.01 5.17 1,65 5.66
Total 6.74 26.91 5.23 28,55
Amounts in T Crores
Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Note -35 Cost of Power Purchased (2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 {2016-17) Mar 3, 2017
Purchase of Energy 597.42 2,820.01 393.43 2,725,82
Transmission charges 143.28 647.13 215.22 643.63
Total 740.70 3,467.14 608.68 3,369.45
Amounts in T Crores
Q4 Year ended Q3 Year ended
Note -36 Employee Benefit Expenses (2017-18) Mar 31, 2048 {2016-17) Mar 3, 2017
Salaries and Allowances 61.94 270.80 63.07 233.31
Contribution to Provident and other funds 12.51 70.25 5.45 18,73
Staff Welfare 5.08 20.13 4.16 18.28
Total 79.51 361.18 72.69 270.32
Amounts in X Crores
Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Note -37 Finance Costs (2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 (2016-17) | mar31,2017
Interest on Borrowings 31.00 167.59 57,20 250.30
Interest on Consumer Security Deposit 10.47 33.28 3.16 25.77
Other Interest 2.07 2.65 0.08 1.3
Other Borrowing Cost 1819 25.95 4.15 14.58
Late Payment Surcharge (LPSC) on Pewer Purchase 362,75 1,044.28 168.27 737.94
Amortisation of Financial Guarantee 4.42 7.04 1.18 4.69
Total 428.90 1,280.79 24.04 1,034.59
Amounts In T Crares
- Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Note -38 Depreciation & Amortisation Expanses (2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 {2016-17) Mar 31, 2047
Total Depreciation 44.17 169.58 29.63 117.63
Total 4417 169.58 ;g.ss 117.63
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BSES YAMUNA POCWER LIMITED

Notes to Financial Statements for the period ended 31 March 2018

Amounts in T Crores
Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Note -3 Other Expenses {2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 (201617) | Mar31, 2017
1) Repair and Maintenance
- Machinery 21.44 82,15 14,42 62.07
- Buildings 1.53 3.89 1.50 3.50
-Cthers 2.95 6.98 0.61 6.20
Consumption (Stores and Spares) 10.54 26,26 5.81 25.95
Steres and Spares written off (0.00) 0.03 013 7.7
36.46 119.31 22.49 105.50
2) Administration Expenses
Vehicle Hire and Running Expenses 5.15 18.95 4,78 17.45
Travelling,Conveyance, Boarding and Lodging 0.88 2.30 0.93 2.28
Insurance 0.47 1.79 0.32 1.1%
Rates and Taxes 117 4.86 11.21 13.90
Bill Collection Charges 537 17.74 4.18 12.53
Communication Expenses 2.79 8.12 2.18 §.40
Printing and Stationery 1.38 3.87 0.84 2.81
Meter Reading and Bill Distribution Expenses B.73 32.19 6.34 2567
Call Centre Expenses 0.72 4,29 0.67 3.92
House Keeping Charges 2,04 7.91 1.43 5.54
Security Expenses 4.14 16.45 3.1 12.66
Advertisment Expenses 0.30 0.87 0.03 0.21
Legal Claims 1.51 1.65 0.01 0.49
Professional Consultancy Charges 8.58 16.33 7.01 13.33
DSS Expenses 0.25 547 0.72 4.34
Administration Expenses (SLA) 9.13 35.49 6.95 31.64
Corporate Social Responsibilities Expenses 0.26 0.82 0.32 0.71
Remuneration to Auditors 0.25 0,45 0.24 0.55
Directors' Sitling Fees 0.05 0.20 0.09 0.13
Bank Charges 0.61 1.24 0.37 0.98
Miscellaneous Expenses 1.42 3.68 1.14 3.68
Provisions For:
- Retirement of Fixed Assets 1.49 1.49 - -
- Non Moving Inventory 8.25 8.25 (0.32) -
- Doubtful Debts (1.37) 8.70 {10.05) 417
Amount Written Off : -
Bad Debis Written Off 6.44 6.44 - -
Less: Provision Made in Earlier Years (B.44) (6.44) - -
Fixed Assets Retired/ Loss on Sale - - 5.37 5.37
Less: Provision Made in Earller Years - B (5.37) (5.37)
Fixed Assets Retired/ Loss on Sale 2.1 7.11 4.64 9,14
Total 102.11 330.53 69.62 281.17
Amounts in ¥ Crores
Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Note -40 Rate regulated actlvities and tax {2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 (2016-17) Mar 31, 2017
Regulatory Deferral Account balances (Refer note 17) 6§52.46 789.87 23213 §51.40
Less: Recovery during the year (Refer note 17) (71.94) (377.13) (62.15) (351.48)
Total 489.=5_§ 412.74 169.98 199.92
Deffered Tax relating to net movements in Regulatory Assets 166.30 142,84 58,83 69.19
Effect of Reversal of Temporary Differences during
Tax Holiday Period & Tax Rate Difference (108.40) 114.02 2.45 102,42
Less:- Recaverable from Future Tariff determination (59.89) {256.86) (61.28) {171.51)
Total 480.52 412.74 169.98 199.92
Amounts in T Crores
Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended
Note -41 Current Tax (2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 (2016-17) Mar 31, 2017
Income Tax for the Current Year (MAT) 747 10,09 1.41 5.34
Income Tax for the Earlier Years - - (0.00) 2.65
Total 7.47 10.09 1.41 7.99 ]
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BSES YAMUNA POWER LIMITED

Notes to Financlal Statements for the period ended 31 March 2018

Amounts in T Crores)

Q4 Year ended Q4 Year ended

Note -42 Income Tax Effect on OCI {2017-18) Mar 31, 2018 {2016-17) Mar 31, 2017
Income Tax Effect on OCI 0,03 0.05 D.03 o.M
Total 0.03 0.05 0.03 0.01
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